

JOURNAL OF THE SENATE

Sixty-second Legislative Assembly

* * * * *

Bismarck, April 13, 2011

The Senate convened at 8:00 a.m., with President Wrigley presiding.

The prayer was offered by Reverend Renee Splichal Larson, Heart River Lutheran Church, Mandan.

The roll was called and all members were present.

A quorum was declared by the President.

COMMUNICATION FROM GOVERNOR JACK DALRYMPLE**MARCH 28, 2011**

Pursuant to North Dakota Century Code §10-04-03, I am hereby nominating Karen Tyler of Bismarck to be reappointed as Commissioner to the North Dakota Office of Securities. Her term ends June 30, 2013.

Pursuant to Article V, Section 8 of the North Dakota Constitution, I ask the Senate to confirm Karen Tyler for this position during the 2011 Legislative Session.

Thank you for your consideration.

REPORT OF PROCEDURAL COMMITTEE

MR. PRESIDENT: Your procedural **Committee on Committees (Sen. Stenehjem, Chairman)** respectfully submits the following names for your **Select Committee** to approve nominee Karen Tyler as Commissioner to the North Dakota Office of Securities: Sens. Holmberg, Bowman, Uglen and Robinson.

SEN. STENEHJEM MOVED that the report be adopted, which motion prevailed on a voice vote.

CONSIDERATION OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE REPORT

SEN. G. LEE MOVED that the conference committee report on Engrossed SB 2308 as printed on SJ page 1392 be adopted, which motion prevailed on a voice vote.

Engrossed SB 2308, as amended, was placed on the Eleventh order of business.

SECOND READING OF SENATE BILL

SB 2308: A BILL for an Act to create and enact a new subdivision to subsection 3 of section 39-12-02, a new subsection to section 39-12-02, and a new section to chapter 39-12 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to special permits for oversize and overweight vehicles, a motor carrier electronic permit transaction fund, and a line of credit; to provide for a continuing appropriation; and to declare an emergency.

ROLL CALL

The question being on the final passage of the amended bill, which has been read, the roll was called and there were 47 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 0 EXCUSED, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

YEAS: Andrist; Berry; Bowman; Burckhard; Christmann; Cook; Dever; Dotzenrod; Erbele; Fischer; Flakoll; Freborg; Grindberg; Heckaman; Hogue; Holmberg; Kilzer; Klein; Krebsbach; Laffen; Larsen; Lee, G.; Lee, J.; Luick; Lyson; Marcellais; Mathern; Miller; Murphy; Nelson; Nething; Nodland; O'Connell; Oehlke; Olafson; Robinson; Schaible; Schneider; Sitte; Sorvaag; Stenehjem; Taylor; Triplett; Uglen; Wanzek; Wardner; Warner

Reengrossed SB 2308 passed and the emergency clause was declared carried.

CONSIDERATION OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE REPORT

SEN. SORVAAG MOVED that the conference committee report on SB 2231 as printed on SJ page 1392 be adopted, which motion prevailed on a voice vote.

SB 2231, as amended, was placed on the Eleventh order of business.

SECOND READING OF SENATE BILL

SB 2231: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact subsections 1 and 7 of section 12.1-32-15 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the registration of sexual offenders.

ROLL CALL

The question being on the final passage of the amended bill, which has been read, the roll was called and there were 47 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 0 EXCUSED, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

YEAS: Andrist; Berry; Bowman; Burckhard; Christmann; Cook; Dever; Dotzenrod; Erbele; Fischer; Flakoll; Freborg; Grindberg; Heckaman; Hogue; Holmberg; Kilzer; Klein; Krebsbach; Laffen; Larsen; Lee, G.; Lee, J.; Luick; Lyson; Marcellais; Mathern; Miller; Murphy; Nelson; Nething; Nodland; O'Connell; Oehlke; Olafson; Robinson; Schaible; Schneider; Sitte; Sorvaag; Stenehjem; Taylor; Triplett; Uglem; Wanzek; Wardner; Warner

Engrossed SB 2231 passed.

CONSIDERATION OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE REPORT

SEN. OLAFSON MOVED that the conference committee report on SB 2247 as printed on SJ page 1392 be adopted, which motion prevailed on a voice vote.

SB 2247, as amended, was placed on the Eleventh order of business.

SECOND READING OF SENATE BILL

SB 2247: A BILL for an Act to create and enact a new section to chapter 14-07.1 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to a domestic violence fatality review commission.

ROLL CALL

The question being on the final passage of the amended bill, which has been read, the roll was called and there were 47 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 0 EXCUSED, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

YEAS: Andrist; Berry; Bowman; Burckhard; Christmann; Cook; Dever; Dotzenrod; Erbele; Fischer; Flakoll; Freborg; Grindberg; Heckaman; Hogue; Holmberg; Kilzer; Klein; Krebsbach; Laffen; Larsen; Lee, G.; Lee, J.; Luick; Lyson; Marcellais; Mathern; Miller; Murphy; Nelson; Nething; Nodland; O'Connell; Oehlke; Olafson; Robinson; Schaible; Schneider; Sitte; Sorvaag; Stenehjem; Taylor; Triplett; Uglem; Wanzek; Wardner; Warner

Engrossed SB 2247 passed.

CONSIDERATION OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE REPORT

SEN. G. LEE MOVED that the conference committee report on Reengrossed HB 1270 as printed on SJ pages 1392-1393 be adopted, which motion prevailed on a voice vote.

Reengrossed HB 1270, as amended, was placed on the Fourteenth order of business.

SECOND READING OF HOUSE BILL

HB 1270: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact sections 15.1-13-09 and 15.1-13-20 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the licensing of teachers from other states; and to repeal section 15.1-13-21 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to reciprocal teaching licenses.

ROLL CALL

The question being on the final passage of the amended bill, which has been read, the roll was called and there were 47 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 0 EXCUSED, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

YEAS: Andrist; Berry; Bowman; Burckhard; Christmann; Cook; Dever; Dotzenrod; Erbele; Fischer; Flakoll; Freborg; Grindberg; Heckaman; Hogue; Holmberg; Kilzer; Klein; Krebsbach; Laffen; Larsen; Lee, G.; Lee, J.; Luick; Lyson; Marcellais; Mathern; Miller; Murphy; Nelson; Nething; Nodland; O'Connell; Oehlke; Olafson; Robinson; Schaible; Schneider; Sitte; Sorvaag; Stenehjem; Taylor; Triplett; Uglem; Wanzek; Wardner; Warner

Reengrossed HB 1270, as amended, passed and the emergency clause was declared carried.

CONSIDERATION OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE REPORT

SEN. FLAKOLL MOVED that the conference committee report on Reengrossed HB 1029 as printed on SJ page 1392 be adopted, which motion prevailed on a voice vote.

CONSIDERATION OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE REPORT

SEN. LYSON MOVED that the conference committee report on Reengrossed HB 1433 as printed on SJ page 1393 be adopted, which motion prevailed on a voice vote.

CONSIDERATION OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE REPORT

SEN. SORVAAG MOVED that the conference committee report on Engrossed SB 2169 as printed on SJ pages 1391-1392 be adopted, which motion prevailed on a voice vote.

MOTION

SEN. CHRISTMANN MOVED that the Senate stand in recess until 1:30 p.m., which motion prevailed.

THE SENATE RECONVENED pursuant to recess taken, with President Wrigley presiding.

CORRECTION AND REVISION OF THE JOURNAL

MR. PRESIDENT: Your **Committee on Correction and Revision of the Journal (Sen. Andrist, Chairman)** has carefully examined the Journal of the Fifty-ninth, Sixty-fourth, and Sixty-fifth Days and recommends that it be corrected as follows and when so corrected, recommends that it be approved:

Page 1076, line 2, replace "Dotzenrod, Laffen, Andrist" with "Andrist, Laffen, Dotzenrod"

Page 1350, line 12, replace "Miller, Heckaman, Larsen " with "Miller, Larsen, Heckaman"

Page 1350, line 13, replace "Beadle, Kretschmar, Zaiser" with "Kretschmar, Beadle, Zaiser"

Page 1369, line 48, replace "Wall, Mueller, Schmidt" with "Wall, Schmidt, Mueller"

SEN. ANDRIST MOVED that the report be adopted, which motion prevailed.

MOTION

SEN. CHRISTMANN MOVED that the Senate resolve itself into a Confirmation Session, which motion prevailed.

REPORT OF SELECT COMMITTEE

MR. PRESIDENT: Your **Select Committee (Sen. Holmberg, Chairman)** appointed to consider the nomination of Commissioner to the North Dakota Office of Securities, do advise and consent to the appointment of Karen Tyler.

MOTION

SEN. HOLMBERG MOVED that the report be adopted.

ROLL CALL

The question being, "will the Senate advise and consent to the appointment of Karen Tyler as Commissioner to the North Dakota Office of Securities," the roll was called and there

were 47 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 0 EXCUSED, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

YEAS: Andrist; Berry; Bowman; Burckhard; Christmann; Cook; Dever; Dotzenrod; Erbele; Fischer; Flakoll; Freborg; Grindberg; Heckaman; Hogue; Holmberg; Kilzer; Klein; Krebsbach; Laffen; Larsen; Lee, G.; Lee, J.; Luick; Lyson; Marcellais; Mathern; Miller; Murphy; Nelson; Nething; Nodland; O'Connell; Oehlke; Olafson; Robinson; Schaible; Schneider; Sitte; Sorvaag; Stenehjem; Taylor; Triplett; Uglem; Wanzek; Wardner; Warner

The Senate advises and consents to the appointment of Karen Tyler as Commissioner to the North Dakota Office of Securities.

MOTION

SEN. CHRISTMANN MOVED that the Confirmation Session be dissolved, which motion prevailed.

APPOINTMENT OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE

SEN. CHRISTMANN MOVED that the President appoint a committee of three to act with a like committee from the House as a Conference Committee on Engrossed HB 1003, Engrossed HB 1020, HB 1033, and Reengrossed HB 1044, which motion prevailed.

THE PRESIDENT APPOINTED as a Conference Committee on:

Engrossed HB 1003: Sens. Holmberg, Krebsbach, O'Connell

Engrossed HB 1020: Sens. Bowman, Holmberg, O'Connell

HB 1033: Sens. Holmberg, Krebsbach, Grindberg

Reengrossed HB 1044: Sens. J. Lee, Uglem, Bowman

CONSIDERATION OF MESSAGE FROM THE HOUSE

SEN. HOLMBERG MOVED that the Senate do not concur in the House amendments to Reengrossed SB 2013 and that a conference committee be appointed to meet with a like committee from the House, which motion prevailed on a voice vote.

APPOINTMENT OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE

THE PRESIDENT APPOINTED as a Conference Committee on Reengrossed SB 2013: Sens. Holmberg, Wardner, Robinson.

CONSIDERATION OF MESSAGE FROM THE HOUSE

SEN. FREBORG MOVED that the Senate do not concur in the House amendments to Reengrossed SB 2150 and that a conference committee be appointed to meet with a like committee from the House, which motion prevailed on a voice vote.

APPOINTMENT OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE

THE PRESIDENT APPOINTED as a Conference Committee on Reengrossed SB 2150: Sens. Freborg, Flakoll, Heckaman.

REPORT OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE

SB 2098: Your conference committee (Sens. Larsen, Nodland, Schneider and Reps. Hofstad, Schmidt, Holman) recommends that the **HOUSE RECEDE** from the House amendments as printed on SJ pages 994-995, adopt amendments as follows, and place SB 2098 on the Seventh order:

That the House recede from its amendments as printed on pages 994 and 995 of the Senate Journal and pages 1109 and 1110 of the House Journal and that Senate Bill No. 2098 be amended as follows:

Page 1, line 2, after the semicolon insert "and"

Page 1, line 3, replace "43-11-05" with "43-11-03, 43-11-04"

Page 1, line 3, remove the second "and"

Page 1, line 4, remove "43-11-17, 43-11-19,"

Page 1, line 4, after the fifth comma insert "and"

Page 1, line 4, replace "43-11-27" with "subdivision b of subsection 1 of section 43-11-28"

Page 1, line 4, after "and" insert "section"

Page 1, line 5, after "to" insert "fees,"

Page 1, line 6, after "schools" insert a comma

Page 1, line 6, after "powers" insert ", membership,"

Page 1, line 7, remove "; to repeal section 43-11-28 of the North Dakota"

Page 1, line 8, remove "Century Code, relating to fees; and to provide an effective date"

Page 3, replace lines 21 through 29 with:

"SECTION 3. AMENDMENT. Section 43-11-03 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

43-11-03. State board of cosmetology - Appointment - Term - Removal.

The state board of cosmetology consists of ~~three~~five members appointed by the governor for three years each, with their terms of office so arranged that ~~one term expires no more than two terms expire~~ on June thirtieth of each year. Each member shall qualify by taking the oath required of civil officers and shall hold office until a successor is appointed and qualified. The governor may remove from office a member for misconduct, malfeasance, neglect of duty in office, crime in office, gross incompetency, or habitual drunkenness. A vacancy on the board must be filled by appointment by the governor for the unexpired term.

SECTION 4. AMENDMENT. Section 43-11-04 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

43-11-04. Members of board - Qualifications.

Each member of the board must be a citizen of this state ~~and~~. Three of the members of the board must each be a licensed cosmetologist who has had at least three years' practical experience in the occupation. The other two members of the board must be citizen members, at least one of whom has professional experience as a secondary teacher or as a postsecondary educator."

Page 4, line 2, overstrike "of one hundred dollars" and insert immediately thereafter "in the amount provided for members of the legislative management under section 54-35-10"

Page 4, remove lines 20 through 31

Page 5, remove lines 1 through 8

Page 5, line 17, remove the overstrike over "~~pursuant to section 43-11-28~~"

Page 5, line 17, remove "by rule"

Page 5, line 20, remove the overstrike over "~~section 43-11-28~~"

Page 5, line 20, remove "rule"

Page 6, line 1, remove the overstrike over "~~as set forth in section 43-11-28~~"

Page 6, line 23, remove the overstrike over "~~as set forth in section 43-11-28~~"

Page 6, remove lines 26 through 31

Page 7, remove lines 1 through 31

Page 8, replace lines 1 through 6 with:

"SECTION 11. AMENDMENT. Subdivision b of subsection 1 of section 43-11-28 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

- b. Examinations:
- (1) Operator practical examination \$25.00
 - (2) Instructors practical examination \$55.00
 - (3) ~~Reexamination fee, operator's~~
 - (a) ~~Practical~~ _____ ~~\$30.00~~
 - (b) ~~Written~~ _____ ~~\$20.00~~
 - (4) ~~Reexamination fee, instructor's~~
 - (a) ~~Practical~~ _____ ~~\$55.00~~
 - (b) ~~Written~~ _____ ~~\$25.00~~ Written examination fees are set and collected by the administrator of the examination and payment is the responsibility of the applicant."

Page 8, remove lines 25 through 27

Renumber accordingly

SB 2098 was placed on the Seventh order of business on the calendar.

CONSIDERATION OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE REPORT

SEN. SCHNEIDER MOVED that the conference committee report on SB 2098 as printed on SJ page 1402-1404 be adopted, which motion prevailed on a voice vote.

SB 2098, as amended, was placed on the Eleventh order of business.

SECOND READING OF SENATE BILL

SB 2098: A BILL for an Act to create and enact a new subsection to section 43-11-02 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to exemption from cosmetology licensure; and to amend and reenact sections 43-11-01, 43-11-03, 43-11-04, and 43-11-06, subsection 7 of section 43-11-16, sections 43-11-21, 43-11-24, 43-11-25, and 43-11-26, subdivision b of subsection 1 of section 43-11-28, and section 43-11-31 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to fees, the practice and licensing of cosmetologists, cosmetology salons, estheticians, instructors, manicurists, and schools, and the powers, membership, and compensation of the state board of cosmetology.

ROLL CALL

The question being on the final passage of the amended bill, which has been read, the roll was called and there were 47 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 0 EXCUSED, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

YEAS: Andrist; Berry; Bowman; Burckhard; Christmann; Cook; Dever; Dotzenrod; Erbele; Fischer; Flakoll; Freborg; Grindberg; Heckaman; Hogue; Holmberg; Kilzer; Klein; Krebsbach; Laffen; Larsen; Lee, G.; Lee, J.; Luick; Lyson; Marcellais; Mathern; Miller; Murphy; Nelson; Nething; Nodland; O'Connell; Oehlke; Olafson; Robinson; Schaible; Schneider; Sitte; Sorvaag; Stenehjem; Taylor; Triplett; Uglem; Wanzek; Wardner; Warner

Engrossed SB 2098 passed.

REPORT OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE

SB 2253: Your conference committee (Sens. Sorvaag, Schaible, Marcellais and Reps. Pietsch, Heilman, S. Meyer) recommends that the **HOUSE RECEDE** from the House amendments as printed on SJ pages 1151-1153, adopt amendments as follows, and place SB 2253 on the Seventh order:

Page 1, line 1, after "A BILL" replace the remainder of the bill with "for an Act to amend and reenact section 57-39.2-26.1 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the allocation of funds in the state aid distribution fund; to provide an effective date; and to declare an emergency.

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY OF NORTH DAKOTA:

SECTION 1. AMENDMENT. Section 57-39.2-26.1 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

57-39.2-26.1. Allocation of revenues among political subdivisions.

Notwithstanding any other provision of law, a portion of sales, gross receipts, use, and motor vehicle excise tax collections, equal to forty percent of an amount determined by multiplying the quotient of one percent divided by the general sales tax rate, that was in effect when the taxes were collected, times the net sales, gross receipts, use, and motor vehicle excise tax collections under chapters 57-39.2, 57-39.5, 57-39.6, 57-40.2, and 57-40.3 must be deposited by the state treasurer in the state aid distribution fund. The state tax commissioner shall certify to the state treasurer the portion of sales, gross receipts, use, and motor vehicle excise tax net revenues that must be deposited in the state aid distribution fund as determined under this section. Revenues deposited in the state aid distribution fund are provided as a standing and continuing appropriation and must be allocated as follows:

1. Fifty-three and seven-tenths percent of the revenues must be allocated to counties in the first month after each quarterly period as provided in this subsection.
 - a. Sixty-four percent of the amount must be allocated among the seventeen counties with the greatest population, in the following manner:
 - (1) Thirty-two percent of the amount must be allocated equally among the counties; and
 - (2) The remaining amount must be allocated based upon the proportion each such county's population bears to the total population of all such counties.
 - b. Thirty-six percent of the amount must be allocated among all counties, excluding the seventeen counties with the greatest population, in the following manner:
 - (1) Forty percent of the amount must be allocated equally among the counties; and
 - (2) The remaining amount must be allocated based upon the proportion each such county's population bears to the total population of all such counties.

A county shall deposit all revenues received under this subsection in the county general fund. Each county shall reserve a portion of its allocation under this subsection for further distribution to, or expenditure on behalf of, townships, rural fire protection districts, rural ambulance districts, soil conservation districts, county recreation service districts, county hospital districts, the Garrison Diversion Conservancy District, the southwest water authority, and other taxing districts within the county, excluding

school districts, cities, and taxing districts within cities. The share of the county allocation under this subsection to be distributed to a township must be equal to the percentage of the county share of state aid distribution fund allocations that township received during calendar year 1996. The governing boards of the county and township may agree to a different distribution.

2. ~~Forty-six and three-tenths percent of the revenues must be allocated to cities in the first month after each quarterly period as provided in this subsection based upon the proportion each city's population bears to the total population of all cities.~~
 - a. ~~Nineteen and four-tenths percent of the amount must be allocated among cities with a population of eighty thousand or more, based upon the proportion each city's population bears to the total population of all such cities.~~
 - b. ~~Thirty-four and five-tenths percent of the amount must be allocated among cities with a population of twenty thousand or more but fewer than eighty thousand, based upon the proportion each such city's population bears to the total population of all such cities.~~
 - c. ~~Sixteen percent of the amount must be allocated among cities with a population of ten thousand or more but fewer than twenty thousand, based upon the proportion each such city's population bears to the total population of all such cities.~~
 - d. ~~Four and nine-tenths percent of the amount must be allocated among cities with a population of five thousand or more but fewer than ten thousand, based upon the proportion each such city's population bears to the total population of all such cities.~~
 - e. ~~Thirteen and one-tenth percent of the amount must be allocated among cities with a population of one thousand or more but fewer than five thousand, based upon the proportion each such city's population bears to the total population of all such cities.~~
 - f. ~~Six and one-tenth percent of the amount must be allocated among cities with a population of five hundred or more but fewer than one thousand, based upon the proportion each such city's population bears to the total population of all such cities.~~
 - g. ~~Three and four-tenths percent of the amount must be allocated among cities with a population of two hundred or more but fewer than five hundred, based upon the proportion each such city's population bears to the total population of all such cities.~~
 - h. ~~Two and six-tenths percent of the amount must be allocated among cities with a population of fewer than two hundred, based upon the proportion each such city's population bears to the total population of all such cities.~~

A city shall deposit all revenues received under this subsection in the city general fund. Each city shall reserve a portion of its allocation under this subsection for further distribution to, or expenditure on behalf of, park districts and other taxing districts within the city, excluding school districts. The share of the city allocation under this subsection to be distributed to a park district must be equal to the percentage of the city share of state aid distribution fund allocations that park district received during calendar year 1996, up to a maximum of thirty percent. The governing boards of the city and park district may agree to a different distribution.

SECTION 2. EFFECTIVE DATE. This Act becomes effective on July 1, 2011.

SECTION 3. EMERGENCY. This Act is declared to be an emergency measure."

Renumber accordingly

SB 2253 was placed on the Seventh order of business on the calendar.

CONSIDERATION OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE REPORT

SEN. SORVAAG MOVED that the conference committee report on SB 2253 as printed on SJ page 1405-1407 be adopted, which motion prevailed on a voice vote.

SB 2253, as amended, was placed on the Eleventh order of business.

SECOND READING OF SENATE BILL

SB 2253: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact section 57-39.2-26.1 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the allocation of funds in the state aid distribution fund; to provide an effective date; and to declare an emergency.

ROLL CALL

The question being on the final passage of the amended bill, which has been read, the roll was called and there were 47 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 0 EXCUSED, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

YEAS: Andrist; Berry; Bowman; Burckhard; Christmann; Cook; Dever; Dotzenrod; Erbele; Fischer; Flakoll; Freborg; Grindberg; Heckaman; Hogue; Holmberg; Kilzer; Klein; Krebsbach; Laffen; Larsen; Lee, G.; Lee, J.; Luick; Lyson; Marcellais; Mathern; Miller; Murphy; Nelson; Nething; Nodland; O'Connell; Oehlke; Olafson; Robinson; Schaible; Schneider; Sitte; Sorvaag; Stenehjem; Taylor; Triplett; Uglem; Wanzek; Wardner; Warner

Engrossed SB 2253 passed and the emergency clause was declared carried.

REPORT OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE

SCR 4002, as engrossed: Your conference committee (Sens. Hogue, Uglem, Schneider and Reps. Hofstad, Brabandt, Hunsakor) recommends that the **HOUSE RECEDE** from the House amendments as printed on SJ pages 832-833, adopt amendments as follows, and place SCR 4002 on the Seventh order:

That the House recede from its amendments as printed on pages 832 and 833 of the Senate Journal and page 1032 of the House Journal and that Engrossed Senate Bill No. 4002 be amended as follows:

Page 1, line 3, after "purposes" insert "and if the federal government is unable or unwilling to convey the land back to nontribal and tribal riparian landowners, then Congress shall convey the land back to the state of North Dakota"

Page 1, line 19, after "purposes" insert "and if the federal government is unable or unwilling to convey the land back to nontribal and tribal riparian landowners, then Congress shall convey the land back to the state of North Dakota"

Renumber accordingly

Engrossed SCR 4002 was placed on the Seventh order of business on the calendar.

CONSIDERATION OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE REPORT

SEN. HOGUE MOVED that the conference committee report on Engrossed SCR 4002 as printed on SJ page 1407 be adopted, which motion prevailed on a voice vote.

Engrossed SCR 4002, as amended, was placed on the Eleventh order of business.

SECOND READING OF SENATE CONCURRENT RESOLUTION

SCR 4002: A concurrent resolution urging Congress to provide a legal process to return to the riparian landowner land controlled by the Army Corps of Engineers which is not necessary for authorized purposes and if the federal government is unable or

unwilling to convey the land back to nontribal and tribal riparian landowners, then Congress shall convey the land back to the state of North Dakota.

The question being on the final adoption of the amended resolution, which has been read.

Reengrossed SCR 4002 was declared adopted on a voice vote.

MESSAGE TO THE HOUSE FROM THE SENATE (WILLIAM R. HORTON, SECRETARY)
MR. SPEAKER: The Senate has laid on the table: HB 1450.

MESSAGE TO THE SENATE FROM THE HOUSE (BUELL J. REICH, CHIEF CLERK)
MR. PRESIDENT: The House has amended and subsequently passed: SB 2150.

HOUSE AMENDMENTS TO REENGROSSED SENATE BILL NO. 2150

In lieu of the amendments adopted by the House as printed on pages 1229-1268 of the House Journal, Reengrossed Senate Bill No. 2150 is amended as follows:

Page 1, line 1, after "A BILL" replace the remainder of the bill with "for an Act to create and enact a new section to chapter 15.1-09.1, four new sections to chapter 15.1-18.2, two new sections to chapter 15.1-21, and eight new sections to chapter 15.1-27 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to regional education associations, the professional development advisory committee, North Dakota scholarships, and supplemental teacher-effectiveness compensation; to amend and reenact sections 15.1-06-04, 15.1-07-33, 15.1-09-58, 15.1-09.1-02, 15.1-21-02.1, 15.1-21-02.4, 15.1-21-02.5, 15.1-21-02.6, 15.1-21-08, 15.1-21-18, 15.1-21-19, 15.1-22-01, 15.1-27-03.1, 15.1-27-04, 15.1-27-07.2, 15.1-27-11, 15.1-27-35.3, 15.1-36-02, and 15.1-37-01, subsection 1 of section 15.1-37-02, and sections 15.1-37-03 and 57-15-14 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the school calendar, technology, regional education associations, curriculum requirements, assessments, scholarships, student consultations, state aid, school construction funding, early childhood education, care, and services, and taxable valuations; to repeal section 6 of this Act and sections 15.1-18.2-01, 15.1-18.2-02, 15.1-18.2-03, and 15.1-27-15 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to professional development and isolated schools; to provide for compensation increases, transition payments, contingent payments, and the distribution of transportation grants, supplemented teacher-effectiveness compensation grants, alternative middle school grants, and rapid enrollment growth grants; to provide for legislative management studies; and to provide an effective date.

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY OF NORTH DAKOTA:

SECTION 1. AMENDMENT. Section 15.1-06-04 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

15.1-06-04. School calendar - Length.

1. During the 2009-10 school year, a school district shall provide for a school calendar of at least one hundred eighty days.
 - a. One hundred seventy-three days must be used for instruction;
 - b. Three days must be used for holidays, as selected by the school board in consultation with district teachers from the list provided for in subdivisions b through j of subsection 1 of section 15.1-06-02;
 - c. Up to two days must be used for:
 - (1) Parent-teacher conferences; or
 - (2) Compensatory time for parent-teacher conferences held outside regular school hours; and

- d. Two days must be used for professional development.
2. ~~During~~Beginning with the 2010-11 school year, a school district shall provide for a school calendar of at least one hundred eighty-one days.
 - a. One hundred seventy-four days must be used for instruction;
 - b. Three days must be used for holidays, as selected by the board in consultation with district teachers from the list provided for in subdivisions b through j of subsection 1 of section 15.1-06-02;
 - c. Up to two days must be used for:
 - (1) Parent-teacher conferences; or
 - (2) Compensatory time for parent-teacher conferences held outside of regular school hours; and
 - d. Two days must be used for professional development.
 3. ~~Beginning with the 2011-12~~2012-13 school year, a school district shall provide for a school calendar of at least one hundred eighty-two days.
 - a. One hundred seventy-five days must be used for instruction;
 - b. Three days must be used for holidays, as selected by the board in consultation with district teachers from the list provided for in subdivisions b through j of subsection 1 of section 15.1-06-02;
 - c. Up to two days must be used for:
 - (1) Parent-teacher conferences; or
 - (2) Compensatory time for parent-teacher conferences held outside of regular school hours; and
 - d. Two days must be used for professional development.
 4. A day for professional development must consist of:
 - a. Six hours of professional development, exclusive of meals and other breaks, conducted within a single day; or
 - b. Two four-hour periods of professional development, exclusive of meals and other breaks, conducted over two days.
 5. If a school district offers a four-hour period of professional development, as permitted in subdivision b of subsection 4, the school district may schedule instruction during other available hours on that same day and be credited with providing one-half day of instruction to students. This subsection does not apply unless the one-half day of instruction equals at least one-half of the time required for a full day of instruction, as defined in this section.
 6.
 - a. In meeting the requirements for two days of professional development under this section, a school district may require that its teachers attend the North Dakota education association instructional conference and may pay teachers for attending the conference, provided their attendance is verified.
 - b. In meeting the requirements for two days of professional development under this section, a school district may consider attendance at the North Dakota education association instructional conference to be optional, elect not to pay teachers for attending the

- instructional conference, and instead direct any resulting savings toward providing alternate professional development opportunities.
- c. A school district may not require the attendance of teachers in school or at any school-sponsored, school-directed, school-sanctioned, or school-related activities and may not schedule classroom instruction time nor alternate professional development activities on any day that conflicts with the North Dakota education association instructional conference.
7. Beginning with the 2010-11 school year, if a school district elects to provide an optional third day of professional development, the school district shall do so by:
 - a. Meeting the requirements for a day of professional development as set forth in subsection 4; or
 - b. Shortening four instructional days, for the purpose of providing for two-hour periods of professional development, provided:
 - (1) Each instructional day on which such professional development occurs includes at least four hours of instruction for kindergarten and elementary students and four and one-half hours for high school students;
 - (2) The instructional time for each course normally scheduled on that day is reduced proportionately or the daily schedule is reconfigured to ensure that the same course is not subject to early dismissal more than one time per school calendar, as a result of this subdivision; and
 - (3) All teachers having a class dismissed as a result of this subdivision are required to be in attendance and participate in the professional development.
 8.
 - a. If a school's calendar provides for an extension of each schoolday beyond the statutorily required minimum number of hours, and if the extensions when aggregated over an entire school year amount to more than eighty-four hours of additional classroom instruction during the school year, the school is exempt from having to make up six hours of instruction time lost as a result of weather-related closure. In order to make up lost classroom instruction time beyond the six hours, the school must extend its normal school calendar day by at least thirty minutes.
 - b. A school that does not qualify under the provisions of this subsection must extend its normal schoolday by at least thirty minutes to make up classroom instruction time lost as a result of weather-related closure.
 - c. If because of weather a school must dismiss before completing a full day of instruction, the school is responsible for making up only those hours and portions of an hour between the time of early dismissal and the conclusion of a full day of classroom instruction.
 9. For purposes of this section, a full day of instruction consists of:
 - a. At least five and one-half hours for kindergarten and elementary students, during which time the students are required to be in attendance for the purpose of receiving curricular instruction; and
 - b. At least six hours for high school students, during which time the students are required to be in attendance for the purpose of receiving curricular instruction.

SECTION 2. AMENDMENT. Section 15.1-07-33 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

15.1-07-33. Student information system - Statewide coordination - Financial support - Exemption.

1. Notwithstanding any other technology requirements imposed by the superintendent of public instruction, the information technology department, or the North Dakota educational technology council, each school district shall acquire PowerSchool through the information technology department and use it as its principal student information system.
2. The superintendent of public instruction shall forward that portion of a school district's state aid which is payable by the superintendent under subdivision n of subsection 1 of section 15.1-27-03.1 directly to the information technology department to reimburse the department for the cost of the school district's acquisition, implementation, or utilization of PowerSchool and any related technology support services. The superintendent shall forward the amount payable under this subsection at the same time and in the same manner as provided for other state aid payments under section 15.1-27-01.
3. If the portion of a school district's state aid forwarded to the information technology department under subsection 2 exceeds the cost incurred by the information technology department in providing for the school district's acquisition, implementation, or utilization of PowerSchool and any related technology support services, the information technology department shall return the excess moneys to the superintendent of public instruction for redistribution to the school district as per student payments.
4. The superintendent of public instruction may exempt a school district from having to acquire and utilize PowerSchool if the school district demonstrates that, in accordance with requirements of the bureau of Indian education, the district has acquired and is utilizing a student information system that is determined to be comparable by the superintendent.

SECTION 3. AMENDMENT. Section 15.1-09-58 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

15.1-09-58. ~~Prekindergarten program~~Early childhood education - Authorization - Support.

~~The board of a school district may establish a prekindergarten~~ an early childhood program and may receive and expend any state moneys specifically appropriated for the program, any federal funds ~~support~~ that program with:

1. Local tax revenues, other than those necessary to support the district's kindergarten program and the district's provision of elementary and high school educational services;
2. Federal moneys specifically appropriated or approved for the program; ~~and any gifts~~
3. Gifts, grants, and donations specifically given for the program.

SECTION 4. AMENDMENT. Section 15.1-09.1-02 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

15.1-09.1-02. Regional education association - Joint powers agreement - Review by superintendent of public instruction - Criteria.

~~Before~~In order for a group of school districts ~~may~~to be designated as a regional education association, the superintendent of public instruction shall review the joint powers agreement that the districts have entered and verify that: the requirements of this section have been met.

1. The school districts must:
 - a. Have a combined total land mass of at least five thousand eight hundred square miles [1502193 hectares];
 - b. (1) Have a combined total land mass of at least four thousand five hundred square miles [1165494 hectares]; and
 - (2) Number at least twelve;
 - c. (1) Have a combined total land mass of at least four thousand square miles [1035995 hectares]; and
 - (2) Have at least three thousand students in average daily membership; or
 - d. (1) Have a combined total land mass of at least one thousand five hundred square miles [388498 hectares]; and
 - (2) Have at least seven thousand five hundred students in average daily membership.
2. The school districts ~~are~~must be contiguous to each other or, if the districts are not contiguous to each other, the superintendent of public instruction shall verify that the participating districts can provide sound educational opportunities to their students in a fiscally responsible manner without injuring other school districts or regional education associations and without negatively impacting the ability of other school districts or regional education associations to provide sound educational opportunities to their students in a fiscally responsible manner. A decision by the superintendent of public instruction under this subsection may be appealed to the state board of public school education. A decision by the state board is final.
3. The joint powers agreement ~~requires~~must require that the participating school districts maintain a joint operating fund ~~and share various administrative functions and student services in accordance with subsection 4.~~
4. ~~a. During the first two school years in which a regional education association is operational, each participating school district shall share in at least two administrative functions and two student services, selected by the district.~~
 - b. ~~During the third and fourth school years in which a regional education association is operational, each participating school district shall share in at least three administrative functions and three student services, selected by the district.~~
 - c. ~~During the fifth school year in which a regional education association is operational, and each year thereafter, each participating school district shall share at least five administrative functions and five student services, selected by the district.~~
 - d. For purposes of this subsection:
 - (1) "Administrative functions" means:

- (a) ~~Business management;~~
 - (b) ~~Career and technical education services management;~~
 - (c) ~~Curriculum mapping or development;~~
 - (d) ~~Data analysis;~~
 - (e) ~~Federal program support;~~
 - (f) ~~Federal title program management;~~
 - (g) ~~Grant writing;~~
 - (h) ~~School improvement;~~
 - (i) ~~School safety and environment management;~~
 - (j) ~~Special education services management;~~
 - (k) ~~Staff development;~~
 - (l) ~~Staff retention and recruitment;~~
 - (m) ~~Staff sharing;~~
 - (n) ~~Technology support; and~~
 - (o) ~~Any other functions approved by the superintendent of public instruction.~~
- (2) "Student services" means:
- (a) ~~Advanced placement classes;~~
 - (b) ~~Alternative high schools or alternative high school programs;~~
 - (c) ~~Career and technical education classes;~~
 - (d) ~~Counseling services;~~
 - (e) ~~Common elementary curricula;~~
 - (f) ~~Distance learning classes;~~
 - (g) ~~Dual credit classes;~~
 - (h) ~~Foreign language classes;~~
 - (i) ~~Library and media services;~~
 - (j) ~~Summer programs;~~
 - (k) ~~Supplemental instruction programs; and~~
 - (l) ~~Any other services approved by the superintendent of public instruction.~~
- e. ~~For purposes of this subsection, if a regional education association became operational before July 1, 2005, the 2005-06 school year must be considered the provider's first year of operation.~~
5. The joint powers agreement ~~provides~~must provide:

- a. Criteria for the future participation of school districts that were not parties to the original joint powers agreement;
 - b. An application process by which school districts that were not parties to the original joint powers agreement can become participating districts; and
 - c. A process by which school districts that were not parties to the original joint powers agreement and whose application to participate in the agreement was denied can appeal the decision to the superintendent of public instruction.
- 6-5. The joint powers agreement ~~provides~~must provide for the employment and compensation of staff.
- 7-6. The joint powers agreement must:
- a. ~~Establishes~~Establish the number of members on the governing board;
 - b. ~~Establishes~~Establish the manner in which members of the governing board are determined;
 - c. ~~Requires all members~~Require that each member of the governing board ~~or their designees to be individuals~~be an individual currently serving on the board of a participating school district ~~or the designee of a participating school district's board~~; and
 - d. ~~Allows~~Allow for the inclusion of ex officio nonvoting members on the governing board.
- 8-7. The joint powers agreement ~~provides~~must provide that the board of the regional education association shall meet at least quarterly.
- 9-8. The joint powers agreement ~~does~~may not permit the regional education association to compensate members of the regional education association board for attending meetings of the board and does not permit the regional education association to reimburse members of the board for any expenses incurred in attending meetings of the board.

SECTION 5. A new section to chapter 15.1-09.1 of the North Dakota Century Code is created and enacted as follows:

Regional education association - Services to be offered.

1. In order to be eligible for state funding, a regional education association must offer the following services to its member districts:
 - a. Coordination and facilitation of professional development activities for teachers and administrators employed by its member districts;
 - b. Supplementation of technology support services;
 - c. Assistance with achieving school improvement goals identified by the superintendent of public instruction;
 - d. Assistance with the collection, analysis, and interpretation of student achievement data; and
 - e. Assistance with the expansion and enrichment of curricular offerings.
2. Subsection 1 does not preclude a regional education association from offering additional services to its member districts.

SECTION 6. A new section to chapter 15.1-18.2 of the North Dakota Century Code is created and enacted as follows:

Professional development advisory committee - Reimbursement of members.

Each member of the professional development advisory committee is entitled to receive reimbursement for expenses as provided by law for state officers if the member is attending committee meetings, except that no member may receive reimbursement under this section for more than three committee meetings during each year of the biennium.

SECTION 7. A new section to chapter 15.1-18.2 of the North Dakota Century Code is created and enacted as follows:

Teacher support program - Establishment.

The education standards and practices board shall:

1. Establish and administer a teacher support program;
2. Employ an individual to serve as a teacher support program coordinator;
3.
 - a. Select and train experienced teachers who will serve as mentors for first-year teachers and assist the first-year teachers with instructional skills development; or
 - b. If a school district or other employing entity listed in section 9 of this Act is not in need of mentors for its first-year teachers, select and train experienced teachers who will work with school district administrators and administrators from the other employing entities to identify the needs of the non-first-year teachers and help the non-first-year teachers address their particular needs through the use of:
 - (1) Research-validated interventions; and
 - (2) Proven instructional methods.

SECTION 8. A new section to chapter 15.1-18.2 of the North Dakota Century Code is created and enacted as follows:

Teacher support program - Availability of services.

The education standards and practices board may use any moneys it receives for the teacher support program to provide staff compensation, training, evaluation, and stipends for mentors and experienced teachers who assist first-year and non-first-year teachers participating in the program, and to pay for any other administrative expenses resulting from the program; provided, however, that the board may not expend more than five percent of the moneys for administrative purposes.

SECTION 9. A new section to chapter 15.1-18.2 of the North Dakota Century Code is created and enacted as follows:

Teacher support program - Authorized service recipients.

The education standards and practices board may provide support services to teachers employed by:

1. School districts;
2. Special education units;
3. Area career and technology centers;

4. Regional education associations; and
5. Schools funded by the bureau of Indian education.

SECTION 10. AMENDMENT. Section 15.1-21-02.1 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

15.1-21-02.1. High school graduation—Diplomadiploma - Minimum requirements.

Except as provided in section 15.1-21-02.3, before a school district, a nonpublic high school, or the center for distance education issues a high school diploma to a student, the student must have successfully completed the following twenty-two units of high school coursework:

1. ~~Four units of English language arts from a sequence that includes literature, composition, and speech;~~
 2. ~~Three units of mathematics;~~
 3. ~~Three units of science, including:

 - a. ~~One unit of physical science;~~
 - b. ~~One unit of biology; and~~
 - e. (1) ~~One unit of any other science; or~~
(2) ~~Two one-half units of any other science;~~~~
 4. ~~Three units of social studies, including:

 - a. ~~One unit of United States history;~~
 - b. (1) ~~One-half unit of United States government and one-half unit of economics; or~~
(2) ~~One unit of problems of democracy; and~~
 - e. ~~One unit or two one-half units of any other social studies, which may include civics, civilization, geography and history, multicultural studies, North Dakota studies, psychology, sociology, and world history;~~~~
 5. ~~a. One unit of physical education; or~~
~~b. One-half unit of physical education and one-half unit of health;~~
 6. ~~Three units of:

 - a. ~~Foreign languages;~~
 - b. ~~Native American languages;~~
 - e. ~~Fine arts; or~~
 - d. ~~Career and technical education courses; and~~~~
 7. ~~Any five additional units.~~
1. The twenty-two units of high school coursework set forth in section 11 of this Act; and
 2. Any additional units of high school coursework required by the issuing entity.

SECTION 11. A new section to chapter 15.1-21 of the North Dakota Century Code is created and enacted as follows:

High school graduation - Minimum requirements.

Except as provided in section 15.1-21-02.3, the following twenty-two units of high school coursework constitute the minimum requirement for high school graduation:

1. Four units of English language arts from a sequence that includes literature, composition, and speech;
2. Three units of mathematics;
3. Three units of science, including:
 - a. One unit of physical science;
 - b. One unit of biology; and
 - c. (1) One unit of any other science; or
(2) Two one-half units of any other science;
4. Three units of social studies, including:
 - a. One unit of United States history;
 - b. (1) One-half unit of United States government and one-half unit of economics; or
(2) One unit of problems of democracy; and
 - c. One unit or two one-half units of any other social studies, which may include civics, civilization, geography and history, multicultural studies, North Dakota studies, psychology, sociology, and world history;
5. a. One unit of physical education; or
b. One-half unit of physical education and one-half unit of health;
6. Three units of:
 - a. Foreign languages;
 - b. Native American languages;
 - c. Fine arts; or
 - d. Career and technical education courses; and
7. Any five additional units.

SECTION 12. AMENDMENT. Section 15.1-21-02.4 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

15.1-21-02.4. North Dakota career and technical education scholarship.

Any resident student who graduates from a high school during or after the 2010-11 school year is eligible to receive a North Dakota career and technical education scholarship provided the student ~~completes all requirements set forth in subsections 1 through 5 and subsection 7 of section 15.1-21-02.1 for a high school diploma and:~~

1. Completed four units of English language arts from a sequence that includes literature, composition, and speech;
2. Completed three units of mathematics, including:
 - a. ~~Completes one~~One unit of algebra II, as defined by the superintendent of public instruction, ~~in fulfillment of the mathematics requirement set forth in subsection 2 of section 15.1-21-02.1; and~~
 - b. ~~Completes two~~Two units of any other mathematics;
3. Completed three units of science, including:
 - a. One unit of physical science;
 - b. One unit of biology; and
 - c. (1) One unit of any other science; or
(2) Two one-half units of any other science;
4. Completed three units of social studies, including:
 - a. One unit of United States history;
 - b. (1) One-half unit of United States government and one-half unit of economics; or
(2) One unit of problems of democracy; and
 - c. One unit or two one-half units of any other social studies, which may include civics, civilization, geography and history, multicultural studies, North Dakota studies, psychology, sociology, and world history;
5. a. Completed one unit of physical education; or
b. One-half unit of physical education and one-half unit of health;
6. Completed:
 - a. One unit selected from:
 - (1) Foreign languages;
 - (2) Native American languages;
 - (3) American sign language;
 - (4) Fine arts; or
 - (5) Career and technical education courses; and
 - b. Two units of a coordinated plan of study recommended by the department of career and technical education and approved by the superintendent of public instruction; ~~and~~
- e-7. ~~Completes three~~Completed any five additional units, two of which must be in the area of career and technical education;
2. ~~Obtains a grade of at least "C" in each unit or one-half unit required for the diploma;~~
- 3-8. a. (1) ~~Obtains~~Obtained a cumulative grade point average of at least ~~"B"~~3.0 on a 4.0 grading scale, as determined by the

superintendent of public instruction, based on all high school units in which the student was enrolled; and

- (2) Obtained a grade of at least "C" in each unit or one-half unit; or
- b. (1) Obtained a cumulative grade point average of at least 3.0 on a 4.0 grading scale, as determined by the superintendent of public instruction, based only on the units required by subsections 1 through 7 of this section; and
- (2) Obtained a grade of at least "C" in each unit or one-half unit; and

4.9. ReceivesReceived:

- a. A composite score of at least twenty-four on an ACT; or
- b. A score of at least five on each of three WorkKeys assessments recommended by the department of career and technical education and approved by the superintendent of public instruction.

SECTION 13. AMENDMENT. Section 15.1-21-02.5 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

15.1-21-02.5. North Dakota academic scholarship.

Any resident student who graduates from a high school during or after the 2010-11 school year is eligible to receive a North Dakota academic scholarship provided the student ~~completes all requirements set forth in subsections 1 through 5 and subsection 7 of section 15.1-21-02.1 for a high school diploma and:~~

- 1. Completed four units of English language arts from a sequence that includes literature, composition, and speech;
- 2. Completed three units of mathematics, including:
 - a. ~~Completes one~~One unit of algebra II, as defined by the superintendent of public instruction, ~~in fulfillment of the mathematics requirement set forth in subsection 2 of section 15.1-21-02.1; and~~
 - b. ~~Completes one additional~~One unit of mathematics for which algebra II, as defined by the superintendent of public instruction, is a prerequisite; ~~and~~
- ~~e.3.~~ Completed three units of science, including:
 - a. One unit of physical science;
 - b. One unit of biology; and
 - c. (1) One unit of any other science; or
(2) Two one-half units of any other science;
- 4. Completed three units of social studies, including:
 - a. One unit of United States history;
 - b. (1) One-half unit of United States government and one-half unit of economics; or
(2) One unit of problems of democracy; and
 - c. One unit or two one-half units of any other social studies, which may include civics, civilization, geography and history, multicultural

studies, North Dakota studies, psychology, sociology, and world history;

5.
 - a. Completed one unit of physical education; or
 - b. One-half unit of physical education and one-half unit of health;
6.
 - a. Completed:
 - (1) Two units of the same foreign or native American language;
 - (2) One unit of fine arts or career and technical educationAmerican sign language; and
 - (3)b. One unit of a foreign or nativeselected from:
 - (1) Foreign languages;
 - (2) Native American language, finelanguages;
 - (3) American sign language;
 - (4) Fine arts, or career; or
 - (5) Career and technical education;
2. Obtains a grade of at least "C" in each unit or one-half unit required for the diploma;
- 3-7. ObtainsCompleted any five additional units, one of which must be in the area of fine arts or career and technical education;
8.
 - a.
 - (1) Obtained a cumulative grade point average of at least "B"3.0 on a 4.0 grading scale, as determined by the superintendent of public instruction, based on all high school units in which the student was enrolled; and
 - (2) Obtained a grade of at least "C" in each unit or one-half unit; or
 - b.
 - (1) Obtained a cumulative grade point average of at least 3.0 on a 4.0 grading scale, as determined by the superintendent of public instruction, based only on the units required by subsections 1 through 7 of this section; and
 - (2) Obtained a grade of at least "C" in each unit or one-half unit;
- 4-9. ReceivesReceived a composite score of at least twenty-four on an ACT; and
- 5-10.
 - a. CompletesFulfilled any one unit requirement set forth in subsections 1 through 7 of this section by means of an advanced placement course and examination; or
 - b. Fullfilled any one-half unit requirement set forth in subsections 1 through 7 of this section by means of a dual-credit course.

SECTION 14. AMENDMENT. Section 15.1-21-02.6 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

15.1-21-02.6. North Dakota scholarship - Amount - Applicability.

1.
 - a. The state board of higher education shall provide to any student certified as being eligible by the superintendent of public instruction either a North Dakota academic scholarship or a North Dakota career and technical education scholarship in the amount of seven

hundred fifty dollars for each semester during which the student is enrolled full time at an accredited institution of higher education in this state and maintains a cumulative grade point average of 2.75.

- b. The state board of higher education shall provide to any student certified as being eligible by the superintendent of public instruction either a North Dakota academic scholarship or a North Dakota career and technical education scholarship in the amount of five hundred dollars for each quarter during which the student is enrolled full time at an accredited institution of higher education in this state and maintains a cumulative grade point average of 2.75.
2. A student is not entitled to receive more than six thousand dollars under this section.
3. The state board of higher education shall forward the scholarship directly to the institution in which the student is enrolled.
4.
 - a. (1) This section does not require a student to be enrolled in consecutive semesters.
 - (2) This section does not require a student to be enrolled in consecutive quarters.
- b. However, a scholarship under this section is valid only for six academic years after the student's graduation from high school and may not be applied to graduate programs.
5. A scholarship under this section is available to any eligible student who graduates from a high school in this state or from a high school in a bordering state under chapter 15.1-29.

SECTION 15. A new section to chapter 15.1-21 of the North Dakota Century Code is created and enacted as follows:

North Dakota scholarship - Eligibility - One-time exception.

1.
 - a. Notwithstanding section 15.1-21-02.6, if a student's cumulative grade point average as determined by the state board of higher education at the conclusion of a semester is below 2.75, the board shall grant an exception and provide the North Dakota scholarship to which the student would otherwise be entitled for the next semester in which the student is enrolled full time. The exception provided by this section is applicable to a student only one time.
 - b. If a student's cumulative grade point average as determined by the state board of higher education at the conclusion of a semester is below 2.75 for a second time, the student is no longer eligible to receive any additional North Dakota scholarships.
2.
 - a. Notwithstanding section 15.1-21-02.6, if a student's cumulative grade point average as determined by the state board of higher education at the conclusion of a quarter is below 2.75, the board shall grant an exception and provide the North Dakota scholarship to which the student would otherwise be entitled for the next quarter in which the student is enrolled full time. The exception provided by this section is applicable to a student only one time.
 - b. If a student's cumulative grade point average as determined by the state board of higher education at the conclusion of a quarter is below 2.75 for a second time, the student is no longer eligible to receive any additional North Dakota scholarships.

SECTION 16. AMENDMENT. Section 15.1-21-08 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

15.1-21-08. Reading, mathematics, and science - Administration of test.

1. The superintendent of public instruction shall administer to public school students a test that is aligned to the state content and achievement standards in reading and mathematics. This test must be administered to ~~all public school students in at least one grade level selected within each of the following grade spans: grades three through five; grades six through nine; and grades ten through twelve.~~ Beginning no later than the 2005-06 school year and annually thereafter, the superintendent of public instruction shall administer the reading and mathematics test annually to all public school students in grades three, four, five, six, seven, eight, and eleven.
2. ~~Beginning no later than the 2007-08 school year and annually thereafter,~~ ~~the~~ The superintendent of public instruction shall administer a test that is aligned to the state content and achievement standards in science. This test must be administered to all public school students in at least one grade level selected from three through five; in at least one grade level selected from six through nine; and in grade eleven. The superintendent of public instruction may not administer the grade eleven test after December first of each school year.

SECTION 17. AMENDMENT. Section 15.1-21-18 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

15.1-21-18. Career interest inventory - Educational and career planning - Consultation.

1. A school district shall administer to students, once during their enrollment in grade seven or eight and once during their enrollment in grade nine or ten, a career interest inventory recommended by the department of career and technical education and approved by the superintendent of public instruction.
2. At least once during the seventh or eighth grade, each school district shall arrange for students to participate in either an individual consultative process or a nine-week course, for the purpose of discussing the results of their career interest inventory, selecting high school courses appropriate to their educational pursuits and career interests, and developing individual high school education plans.
3. Each school district shall notify its high school students that, upon request, a student is entitled to receive a consultative review of the student's individual high school education plan at least once during each high school grade. Upon the request of a student, the school district shall provide the consultative review.
4. Each school district shall verify compliance with the requirements of this section at the time and in the manner required by the superintendent of public instruction.

SECTION 18. AMENDMENT. Section 15.1-21-19 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

15.1-21-19. Summative assessment - Selection - Cost - Exemptions.

1. Except as otherwise provided, each public and nonpublic school student in grade eleven shall take the ACT, including the writing test, or three WorkKeys assessments recommended by the department of career and technical education and approved by the superintendent of public instruction. The student shall determine which summative assessment to take. ~~The student's school district of residence~~ superintendent of public instruction is responsible for the cost of procuring and administering one summative assessment ~~and its administration~~ per student.

2. The student's career advisor or guidance counselor shall meet with the student to review the student's assessment results.
3. A school district superintendent or a school administrator in the case of a nonpublic school student may exempt a student from the requirements of this section if taking the test is not required by the student's individualized education program plan or if other special circumstances exist.
4. ~~If the superintendent of public instruction determines that the cost of the summative assessment and its administration can be reduced through use of a state procurement process, the superintendent shall work with the school districts to procure and arrange for the administration of the assessment and shall withhold each district's share of the total cost from any state aid otherwise payable to the district.~~ At the time and in the manner determined by the superintendent of public instruction, each school district superintendent and each school administrator in the case of a nonpublic school shall report the number of eleventh grade students who:
 - a. Took the ACT, including the writing test;
 - b. Took the three WorkKeys assessments; and
 - c. Were exempted from the requirements of this section, together with the reason for each exemption.

SECTION 19. AMENDMENT. Section 15.1-22-01 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

15.1-22-01. Kindergarten - Establishment by board - Request by parent - Levy.

1. ~~Upon its own motion, the~~ The board of a school district ~~may establish a free public kindergarten.~~
2. ~~If the board receives a written request to provide kindergarten from the parent of a student who will be enrolled in the kindergarten, the board shall either provide at least a half-day kindergarten program for the student or pay the tuition required for the student to attend at least a half-day kindergarten program in another school district.~~
3. ~~2.~~ 2. The board of a school district that establishes a kindergarten under this section may levy a tax pursuant to subdivision p of subsection 1 of section 57-15-14.2.

SECTION 20. AMENDMENT. Section 15.1-27-03.1 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

15.1-27-03.1. ~~(Effective through June 30, 2011) Weighted average daily membership - Determination.~~

1. ~~For each school district, the superintendent of public instruction shall multiply by:~~
 - a. ~~1.00 the number of full-time equivalent students enrolled in a migrant summer program;~~
 - b. ~~1.00 the number of full-time equivalent students enrolled in an extended educational program in accordance with section 15.1-32-17;~~
 - c. ~~0.60 the number of full-time equivalent students enrolled in a summer education program;~~

- d. 0.50 the number of full-time equivalent students enrolled in a home-based education program and monitored by the school district under chapter 15.1-23;
 - e. 0.30 the number of full-time equivalent students who on a test of English language proficiency approved by the superintendent of public instruction are determined to be least proficient and are enrolled in a program of instruction for English language learners;
 - f. 0.25 the number of full-time equivalent students enrolled in an alternative high school;
 - g. 0.25 the number of full-time equivalent students enrolled in an isolated elementary school;
 - h. 0.25 the number of full-time equivalent students enrolled in an isolated high school;
 - i. 0.20 the number of full-time equivalent students attending school in a bordering state in accordance with section 15.1-29-01;
 - j. 0.20 the number of full-time equivalent students who on a test of English language proficiency approved by the superintendent of public instruction are determined to be not proficient and are enrolled in a program of instruction for English language learners;
 - k. 0.17 the number of full-time equivalent students enrolled in an early childhood special education program;
 - l. 0.07 the number of students enrolled in average daily membership, in order to support the provision of special education services;
 - m. 0.07 the number of full-time equivalent students who on a test of English language proficiency approved by the superintendent of public instruction are determined to be somewhat proficient and are enrolled in a program of instruction for English language learners;
 - n. 0.004 the number of students enrolled in average daily membership in a school district that is a participating member of a regional education association meeting the requirements of chapter 15.1-09-1; and
 - o. 0.002 the number of students enrolled in average daily membership, in order to support technology.
2. The superintendent of public instruction shall determine each school district's weighted average daily membership by adding the products derived under subsection 1 to the district's average daily membership.

(Effective after June 30, 2011) Weighted average daily membership - Determination.

1. For each school district, the superintendent of public instruction shall multiply by:
 - a. 1.00 the number of full-time equivalent students enrolled in a migrant summer program;
 - b. 1.00 the number of full-time equivalent students enrolled in an extended educational program in accordance with section 15.1-32-17;
 - c. 0.60 the number of full-time equivalent students enrolled in a summer education program;

- d. 0.50 the number of full-time equivalent students enrolled in a home-based education program and monitored by the school district under chapter 15.1-23;
- e. 0.30 the number of full-time equivalent students who ~~are~~:
- (1) On a test of English language proficiency approved by the superintendent of public instruction are determined to be least proficient and placed in the first of six categories of proficiency; and ~~are~~
 - (2) Are enrolled in a program of instruction for English language learners;
- f. 0.25 the number of full-time equivalent students enrolled in an alternative high school;
- ~~g. 0.25 the number of full-time equivalent students enrolled in an isolated elementary school;~~
- ~~h. 0.25 the number of full-time equivalent students enrolled in an isolated high school;~~
- i. 0.20 the number of full-time equivalent students attending school in a bordering state in accordance with section 15.1-29-01;
- ~~j-h. 0.20 the number of full-time equivalent students who ~~are~~:~~
- (1) On a test of English language proficiency approved by the superintendent of public instruction are determined to be ~~not more~~ proficient than students placed in the first of six categories of proficiency and therefore placed in the second of six categories of proficiency; and ~~are~~
 - (2) Are enrolled in a program of instruction for English language learners;
- ~~k-i. 0.17 the number of full-time equivalent students enrolled in an early childhood special education program;~~
- ~~t-j. 0-070.10 the number of students enrolled in average daily membership, if the district has fewer than one hundred students enrolled in average daily membership and the district consists of an area greater than two hundred seventy-five square miles [19424.9 hectares], provided that any school district consisting of an area greater than six hundred square miles [155399 hectares] and enrolling fewer than fifty students in average daily membership must be deemed to have an enrollment equal to fifty students in average daily membership;~~
- ~~k. 0.073 the number of students enrolled in average daily membership, in order to support the provision of special education services;~~
- ~~m-l. 0.07 the number of full-time equivalent students who ~~are~~:~~
- (1) On a test of English language proficiency approved by the superintendent of public instruction are determined to be ~~somewhat more~~ proficient and are than students placed in the second of six categories of proficiency and therefore placed in the third of six categories of proficiency;
 - (2) Are enrolled in a program of instruction for English language learners; and

- (3) Have not been in the third of six categories of proficiency for more than three years:
- n.m. 0.025 the number of students representing that percentage of the total number of students in average daily membership which is equivalent to the three-year average percentage of students in grades three through eight who are eligible for free or reduced lunches under the Richard B. Russell National School Lunch Act [42 U.S.C. 1751 et seq.];
- n. 0.006 the number of students enrolled in average daily membership in each public school in the district that:
- (1) Has acquired and is utilizing the PowerSchool student information system;
- (2) Has acquired and is in the process of implementing the PowerSchool student information system; or
- (3) Will acquire the PowerSchool student information system during the current school year, provided the acquisition is contractually demonstrated; and
- o. 0.004 the number of students enrolled in average daily membership in a school district that is a participating member of a regional education association meeting the requirements of chapter 15.1-09.1; ~~and~~
- p. ~~0.002 the number of students enrolled in average daily membership, in order to support technology.~~
2. The superintendent of public instruction shall determine each school district's weighted average daily membership by adding the products derived under subsection 1 to the district's average daily membership.

SECTION 21. AMENDMENT. Section 15.1-27-04 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

15.1-27-04. Per student payment rate.

1. a. The per student payment rate to which each school district is entitled for the first year of the biennium is three thousand ~~two~~nine hundred ~~thirty~~ dollars.
- b. The per student payment rate to which each school district is entitled for the second year of the biennium is three thousand ~~seven~~nine hundred ~~seventy-nine~~seventy dollars.
2. In order to determine the state aid payment to which each district is entitled, the superintendent of public instruction shall multiply each district's weighted student units by the per student payment rate set forth in subsection 1.

SECTION 22. AMENDMENT. Section 15.1-27-07.2 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

15.1-27-07.2. Baseline funding - Determination - Minimum and maximum allowable increases.

1. The superintendent of public instruction shall determine each school district's baseline funding per weighted student unit by:
- a. Adding together all state aid received by the district during the 2006-07 school year;

- b. Subtracting the amount received by the district during the 2006-07 school year for transportation aid, special education excess cost reimbursements, special education contracts, prior year funding adjustments, and per student payments for participation in educational associations governed by joint powers agreements; and
 - c. Dividing the amount determined under subdivision b by the district's 2007-08 weighted student units.
- 2. a. The superintendent of public instruction shall ensure that the total amount of state aid payable to a district per weighted student unit, for the 2009-10 school year, is at least equal to one hundred eight percent of the baseline funding per weighted student unit, as established in subsection 1.
 - b. The superintendent of public instruction shall ensure that the total amount of state aid payable to a district per weighted student unit, for each school year after the 2009-10 school year, is at least equal to one hundred twelve and one-half percent of the baseline funding per weighted student unit, as established in subsection 1.
- 3. a. The superintendent of public instruction shall ensure that the total amount of state aid payable to a district per weighted student unit, less any amount received as equity payments under section 15.1-27-11 per weighted student unit, does not exceed, for the ~~2009-10~~2011-12 school year, one hundred ~~twentyfour~~two percent of the baseline funding per weighted student unit, as established in subsection 1.
 - ~~b. The superintendent of public instruction shall ensure that the total amount of state aid payable to a district per weighted student unit, less any amount received as equity payments under section 15.1-27-11 per weighted student unit, does not exceed, for each school year after the 2009-10 school year, one hundred thirty-four percent of the baseline funding per weighted student unit, as established in subsection 1.~~

SECTION 23. AMENDMENT. Section 15.1-27-11 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

15.1-27-11. Equity payments.

- 1. The superintendent of public instruction shall:
 - a. Divide the imputed taxable valuation of the state by the total average daily membership of all school districts in the state in order to determine the state average imputed taxable valuation per student.
 - b. Divide the imputed taxable valuation of each school district by the district's total average daily membership in order to determine each district's average imputed taxable valuation per student.
- 2. If a school district's imputed taxable valuation per student is less than ninety percent of the statewide imputed taxable valuation per student, the superintendent of public instruction shall calculate the valuation deficiency by:
 - a. Determining the difference between ninety percent of the state average imputed taxable valuation per student and the district's average imputed taxable valuation per student; and
 - b. Multiplying that difference by the district's total average daily membership.

3. Except as provided in subsection 4, the equity payment to which a district is entitled under this section equals the district's valuation deficiency multiplied by the lesser of:
 - a. The district's general fund levy for the taxable year 2008; or
 - b. One hundred eighty-five mills.
4.
 - a. The equity payment to which a district is entitled may not exceed the district's taxable valuation multiplied by its general fund levy for the taxable year 2008.
 - b. If a district's general fund levy for the taxable year 2008 is less than one hundred eighty-five mills, the superintendent of public instruction shall subtract the district's general fund levy for the taxable year 2008 from one hundred eighty-five mills, multiply the result by the district's taxable valuation, and subtract that result from the equity payment to which the district is otherwise entitled.
 - c. If a district's imputed taxable valuation per student is less than fifty percent of the statewide imputed taxable valuation per student, the payment to which the district is entitled under this section may not be less than twenty percent of the statewide imputed taxable valuation per student times the school district's average daily membership, multiplied by one hundred eighty-five mills.
5. In determining the amount to which a school district is entitled under this section, the superintendent of public instruction may not include any payments received by the district as a result of Public Law No. 81-874 [64 Stat. 1100; 20 U.S.C. 236 et seq.] and may not include in the district's average daily membership students who are dependents of members of the armed forces and students who are dependents of civilian employees of the department of defense.
6. In determining the statewide average imputed taxable valuation per student for purposes of this section, the superintendent of public instruction may not include:
 - a. Any school district, which if included in the calculation would have an imputed taxable valuation per student that is three times greater than the statewide average imputed taxable valuation per student; and
 - b. Any school district, which if included in the calculation would have an imputed taxable valuation per student that is less than one-fifth of the statewide average imputed taxable valuation per student.
7. For purposes of this section:
 - a. "General fund levy" includes a district's high school transportation levy and its high school tuition levy.
 - b. "Imputed taxable valuation" means the valuation of all taxable real property in the district plus:
 - (1) An amount determined by dividing seventy percent of the district's mineral and tuition revenue, revenue from payments in lieu of property taxes on distribution and transmission of electric power, revenue from payments in lieu of taxes from electricity generated from sources other than coal, and revenue received on account of the leasing of lands acquired by the United States for flood control, navigation, and allied purposes in accordance with 33 U.S.C. 701c-3 by the district's general fund mill levy for the taxable year 2008; and

- (2) An amount determined by dividing the district's revenue from mobile home taxes and telecommunications taxes by the district's general fund mill levy for the taxable year 2008.
- c. "Mineral revenue" includes all revenue from county sources reported under code 2000 of the North Dakota school district financial accounting and reporting manual as developed by the superintendent of public instruction in accordance with section 15.1-02-08.
- d. "Tuition revenue" includes all revenue reported under code 1300 of the North Dakota school district financial accounting and reporting manual as developed by the superintendent of public instruction in accordance with section 15.1-02-08. "Tuition revenue" does not include tuition income received specifically for the operation of an educational program provided at a residential treatment facility.

SECTION 24. AMENDMENT. Section 15.1-27-35.3 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

15.1-27-35.3. ~~(Effective through June 30, 2011) Payments to school districts -- Unobligated general fund balance -- Report to legislative council.~~

- 1. ~~The superintendent of public instruction shall determine the amount of payments due a school district and shall subtract from that the amount by which the unobligated general fund balance of the district on the preceding June thirtieth is in excess of fifty percent of its actual expenditures, plus twenty thousand dollars. Beginning July 1, 2008, the superintendent of public instruction shall determine the amount of payments due a school district and shall subtract from that the amount by which the unobligated general fund balance of the district on the preceding June thirtieth is in excess of forty five percent of its actual expenditures, plus twenty thousand dollars.~~
- 2. ~~In making the determination required by subsection 1, the superintendent of public instruction may not include in a district's unobligated general fund balance any moneys that:~~
 - a. ~~(1) Were received by the district during the school year ending June 30, 2009, on account of the leasing of lands acquired by the United States for flood control, navigation, and allied purposes in accordance with 33 U.S.C. 701c-3; and~~
 - ~~(2) Exceeded the amount received by the district during the school year ending June 30, 2008, for the purpose stated in paragraph 1;~~
 - b. ~~Were received directly by the district from the United States government in accordance with the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009; or~~
 - c. ~~Were received by the district as supplemental one-time grants under section 52 of S.L. 2009, ch. 175.~~
- 3. ~~Any district having more than fifty thousand dollars excluded in the determination of its ending fund balance, as required by subsection 2, shall provide a report to the legislative council. The report, which must be presented at the time and in the manner directed by the legislative council, must address how the money was expended, including the number of mills by which the district was able to decrease its property taxes, if such was a permitted use.~~

~~(Effective after June 30, 2011) Payments to school districts - Unobligated general fund balance.~~

1. ~~The superintendent of public instruction shall determine the amount of payments due a school district and shall subtract from that the amount by which the unobligated general fund balance of the district on the preceding June thirtieth is in excess of fifty percent of its actual expenditures, plus twenty thousand dollars. Beginning July 1, 2008, the superintendent of public instruction shall determine the amount of payments due a school district and shall subtract from that the amount by which the unobligated general fund balance of the district on the preceding June thirtieth is in excess of forty-five percent of its actual expenditures, plus twenty thousand dollars.~~
2. In making the determination required by subsection 1, the superintendent of public instruction may not include in a district's unobligated general fund balance any moneys that were received by the district from the federal education jobs fund program.

SECTION 25. A new section to chapter 15.1-27 of the North Dakota Century Code is created and enacted as follows:

Supplemental teacher-effectiveness compensation plan.

1. A representative organization authorized by a negotiating unit, as defined in subdivision b of subsection 2 of section 15.1-16-01, and the board of a school district may agree to pursue a supplemental teacher-effectiveness compensation plan for teachers in the negotiating unit.
2. The negotiating unit may include:
 - a. All teachers employed by the board to teach in the school district; or
 - b. All teachers employed by the board to teach at a particular school in the district.
3. For purposes of this section and the implementation of the supplemental teacher-effectiveness compensation plan, "teacher" means an individual defined in subdivision b of subsection 6 of section 15.1-02-13.

SECTION 26. A new section to chapter 15.1-27 of the North Dakota Century Code is created and enacted as follows:

Supplemental teacher-effectiveness compensation plan - Development committee - Membership.

1. Upon agreeing to pursue a supplemental teacher-effectiveness compensation plan, the board of the school district and the representative organization shall form a committee to develop the plan. The membership of the committee must be agreed upon by the board of the school district and the representative organization.
2. At the initial meeting of the committee, the members shall establish rules of operation and procedure.
3. The committee formed under this section is a public entity for purposes of chapter 44-04.

SECTION 27. A new section to chapter 15.1-27 of the North Dakota Century Code is created and enacted as follows:

Supplemental teacher-effectiveness compensation plan - Required content.

1. A supplemental teacher-effectiveness compensation plan developed under this section must:

- a. Include only matters of compensation and may not include other terms or conditions of employment normally negotiated under chapter 15.1-16;
 - b. Provide for a determination of compensation that takes into account:
 - (1) Whether the school district has had difficulty filling a particular position with a suitable and highly qualified teacher;
 - (2) Whether a teacher has advanced academic degrees or special skills and knowledge beyond those minimally required for a position;
 - (3) Whether a teacher has pursued certified professional development activities beyond those minimally required for a position;
 - (4) Whether a teacher has assumed responsibilities that are beyond those minimally required for a position; and
 - (5) Various measures of student growth, including academic growth;
 - c. Include a rigorous and objective system of teacher evaluation that equitably links an individual's performance to the opportunity for additional compensation; and
 - d. Ensure that no teacher subject to the plan will receive less total compensation than that teacher was eligible to receive under the last contract negotiated under chapter 15.1-16.
2. A supplemental teacher-effectiveness compensation plan is not subject to a declaration of impasse under chapter 15.1-16.

SECTION 28. A new section to chapter 15.1-27 of the North Dakota Century Code is created and enacted as follows:

Supplemental teacher-effectiveness compensation plan - Review panel - Duties.

1. Upon agreeing to a supplemental teacher-effectiveness compensation plan, the plan development committee shall forward the plan to a panel consisting of:
 - a. Two employees of the department of public instruction, selected by the superintendent of public instruction;
 - b. Two individuals appointed by the North Dakota council of educational leaders;
 - c. Two individuals appointed by the North Dakota education association; and
 - d. Two individuals appointed by the North Dakota school boards association.
2. Beginning April 1, 2012, the panel shall review each plan that is submitted to ensure that it meets the requirements of section 27 of this Act.

SECTION 29. A new section to chapter 15.1-27 of the North Dakota Century Code is created and enacted as follows:

Supplemental teacher-effectiveness compensation plan - Review panel - Additional duties.

In addition to the duties set forth in section 28 of this Act, the review panel shall:

1. Develop and distribute guidelines pertaining to the creation of supplemental teacher-effectiveness compensation plans;
2. Upon request meet with and advise plan development committees pursuing the creation of supplemental teacher-effectiveness compensation plans; and
3. Provide advice to the superintendent of public instruction regarding the hiring of any employees or the selection of any contractors whose duties will be related to supplemental teacher-effectiveness compensation.

SECTION 30. A new section to chapter 15.1-27 of the North Dakota Century Code is created and enacted as follows:

Annual report - Required content.

1. Any school district that receives state moneys to implement a supplemental teacher-effectiveness compensation plan shall file an annual report with the superintendent of public instruction, at the time and in the manner directed by the superintendent. The report must address whether the plan has:
 - a. Alleviated difficulty filling particular positions with suitable and highly qualified teachers;
 - b. Encouraged teachers to pursue advanced academic degrees or acquire special skills and knowledge beyond those minimally required for a position;
 - c. Encouraged teachers to pursue certified professional development activities beyond those minimally required for a position;
 - d. Encouraged teachers to assume additional responsibilities that are beyond those minimally required for a position; and
 - e. Resulted in measurable student growth, including academic growth.
2. The report also must include suggestions for modifications to the plan, if appropriate.
3. The representative organization shall indicate in writing its agreement with the report and the suggestions for modifications, as submitted by the school district in accordance with this section, or provide to the superintendent of public instruction a separate report together with any suggestions for modifications.
4. The superintendent of public instruction shall provide copies of the report to the plan review panel established by section 28 of this Act.

SECTION 31. A new section to chapter 15.1-27 of the North Dakota Century Code is created and enacted as follows:

Existing contracts - Terms - Effect.

1. The terms of any contract entered before July 1, 2011, between the board of a school district and a representative organization in accordance with chapter 15.1-16, remain in force and effect for the duration of the contract.

2. A supplemental teacher-effectiveness compensation plan authorized by this Act may take effect on July 1, 2012.

SECTION 32. A new section to chapter 15.1-27 of the North Dakota Century Code is created and enacted as follows:

Plan review panel - Reimbursement for expenses.

Each member of the supplemental teacher-effectiveness compensation plan review panel is entitled to receive reimbursement for expenses as provided by law for state officials if the member is attending meetings or performing duties directed by the panel.

SECTION 33. AMENDMENT. Section 15.1-36-02 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

15.1-36-02. School construction projects - Loans.

1. The board of university and school lands may authorize the use of moneys in the coal development trust fund established pursuant to section 21 of article X of the Constitution of North Dakota and subsection 1 of section 57-62-02 to provide school construction loans, as described in this chapter. The outstanding principal balance of loans under this chapter may not exceed fifty million dollars. The board may adopt policies and rules governing school construction loans.
2. In order to be eligible for a loan under this section, the board of a school district shall:
 - a. Propose a construction project with a cost of at least one million dollars and an expected utilization of at least thirty years;
 - b. Obtain the approval of the superintendent of public instruction for the construction project under section 15.1-36-01; and
 - c. Submit to the superintendent of public instruction an application containing all information deemed necessary by the superintendent, including potential alternative sources or methods of financing the construction project.
3. The superintendent of public instruction shall give priority to any district that meets the requirements for receipt of an equity payment under section 15.1-27-11.
4. If an eligible school district's imputed taxable valuation per student is less than eighty percent of the state average imputed valuation per student, the district is entitled to receive:
 - a. A school construction loan equal to the lesser of ~~eight~~twelve million dollars or eighty percent of the actual project cost;
 - b. An interest rate discount equal to at least ~~fifty~~one hundred but not more than two hundred ~~fifty~~ basis points below the prevailing tax-free bond rates; and
 - c. A term of repayment that may extend up to twenty years.
5. If an eligible school district's imputed taxable valuation per student is equal to at least eighty percent but less than ninety percent of the state average imputed taxable valuation per student, the district is entitled to receive:
 - a. A school construction loan equal to the lesser of ~~seventen~~ten million dollars or seventy percent of the actual project cost;

- b. An interest rate buydown equal to at least ~~forty~~ fiftyone hundred but not more than two hundred fifty basis points below the prevailing tax-free bond rates; and
 - c. A term of repayment that may extend up to twenty years.
6. If an eligible school district's imputed taxable valuation per student is equal to at least ninety percent of the state average imputed taxable valuation per student, the district is entitled to receive:
- a. A school construction loan equal to the lesser of ~~two~~ four million ~~five-hundred thousand~~ dollars or thirty percent of the actual project cost;
 - b. An interest rate discount equal to at least fiftyone hundred but not more than two hundred fifty basis points below the prevailing tax-free bond rates; and
 - c. A term of repayment that may extend up to twenty years.
7. The board of a school district may submit its loan application to the superintendent of public instruction before or after receiving authorization of a bond issue in accordance with chapter 21-03. If the vote to authorize a bond issue precedes the application for a loan, the application must be acted upon by the superintendent expeditiously but no later than one hundred eighty days from the date it is received by the superintendent.
8. The superintendent of public instruction shall consider each loan application in the order it received approval under section 15.1-36-01.
9. If the superintendent of public instruction approves the loan, the superintendent may determine the loan amount, the term of the loan, and the interest rate, in accordance with the requirements of this section.
10. The superintendent of public instruction may adopt rules governing school construction loans.
11. For purposes of this section, a construction project means the purchase, lease, erection, or improvement of any structure or facility by a school board, provided the acquisition or activity is within a school board's authority.

SECTION 34. AMENDMENT. Section 15.1-37-01 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

15.1-37-01. Early childhood education program - Approval.

1. Any person or school district operating an early childhood education program may request approval of the program from the superintendent of public instruction. The superintendent shall approve an early childhood education program if the program:
 - ~~1-a.~~ 4-a. Is taught by individuals who are licensed to teach in early childhood education by the education standards and practices board;
 - ~~2-b.~~ 2-b. Follows a developmentally appropriate curriculum; ~~and~~
 - ~~3-c.~~ 3-c. Is in compliance with all municipal and state health, fire, and safety requirements; and
 - d. Limits its enrollment to children who have reached the age of four before August first in the year of enrollment.
2. ~~Per student funding will not be provided to individuals or school districts offering a prekindergarten. In determining the state aid payments to which a school district is entitled, the superintendent of public instruction may~~

not count any student enrolled in a regular early childhood education program.

SECTION 35. AMENDMENT. Subsection 1 of section 15.1-37-02 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

1. The North Dakota early childhood education council consists of:
 - a. A chairman appointed by the governor;
 - b. The superintendent of public instruction, or the superintendent's designee;
 - c. The state health officer, or the officer's designee;
 - d. The director of the department of human services, or the director's designee;
 - e. The North Dakota head start - state collaboration administrator, or the administrator's designee;
 - f. The commissioner of higher education, or the commissioner's designee;
 - g. The commissioner of commerce, or the commissioner's designee;
 - h. The chairman of the senate education committee, or the chairman's designee;
 - ~~h.i.~~ The chairman of the house of representatives education committee, or the chairman's designee; and
 - ~~i.j.~~ The following gubernatorial appointees:
 - (1) The superintendent of a school district having at least one thousand students in average daily membership;
 - (2) The superintendent of a school district having fewer than one thousand students in average daily membership;
 - (3) The superintendent of a school district headquartered on a reservation or including reservation land within its boundaries;
 - (4) ~~The principal of a school district;~~
 - (5) ~~An individual employed as an elementary school teacher;~~
 - (6) An individual representing a non-religious-based provider of ~~preschool~~early childhood education;
 - ~~(7)(5)~~ An individual representing a religious-based provider of ~~preschool~~early childhood education;
 - ~~(8)(6)~~ An individual representing a center-based licensed child care provider;
 - ~~(9)(7)~~ An individual representing a home-based licensed child care provider;
 - ~~(10)(8)~~ An individual representing a reservation-based head start program;
 - ~~(11)(9)~~ An elected member of a school board;

~~(12)(10)~~ The parent of a child not yet enrolled in elementary school; ~~and~~

~~(13)(11)~~ The parent of a child with ~~special needs~~ disabilities not yet enrolled in elementary school; and

(12) An individual representing children with disabilities.

SECTION 36. AMENDMENT. Section 15.1-37-03 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

15.1-37-03. Council - Duties.

The council shall:

1. Review the ~~delivery~~ availability and provision of early childhood education, care, and services in this state;
2. ~~Conduct a needs assessment;~~
3. ~~Review early childhood education standards and propose revisions to the standards as needed;~~
4. ~~Review~~ Identify opportunities for public and private sector collaboration in the ~~delivery~~ provision of early childhood education, care, and services in this state;
5. ~~Develop a comprehensive plan governing the delivery of early childhood education in this state; and~~
- 6-3. Identify ways to assist with the recruitment and retention of individuals interested in working as providers of early childhood education, care, and services, including training and continuing education or professional development opportunities;
4. Seek the advice and guidance of individuals who are uniquely familiar with the nature, scope, and associated challenges of providing early childhood education, care, and services in geographically and socioeconomically diverse settings, and develop recommendations pertaining to the short-term and longer-term improvement and expansion of early childhood education, care, and services in this state; and
5. Provide a biennial report regarding its ~~activities~~ findings and recommendations to the governor and the legislative ~~council~~ assembly.

SECTION 37. AMENDMENT. Section 57-15-14 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

57-15-14. General fund levy limitations in school districts.

The aggregate amount levied each year for the purposes listed in section 57-15-14.2 by any school district, except the Fargo school district, may not exceed the amount in dollars which the school district levied for the prior school year plus twelve percent up to a general fund levy of one hundred eighty-five mills on the dollar of the taxable valuation of the district, except that:

1. In any school district having a total population in excess of four thousand according to the last federal decennial census there may be levied any specific number of mills that upon resolution of the school board has been submitted to and approved by a majority of the qualified electors voting upon the question at any regular or special school district election.
2. In any school district having a total population of fewer than four thousand, there may be levied any specific number of mills that upon resolution of the school board has been approved by fifty-five percent of

- the qualified electors voting upon the question at any regular or special school election.
3. After June 30, 2009, in any school district election for approval by electors of increased levy authority under subsection 1 or 2, the ballot must specify the number of mills proposed for approval, and the number of taxable years for which that approval is to apply. After June 30, 2009, approval by electors of increased levy authority under subsection 1 or 2 may not be effective for more than ten taxable years.
 4. The authority for a levy of up to a specific number of mills under this section approved by electors of a school district before July 1, 2009, is terminated effective for taxable years after 2015. If the electors of a school district subject to this subsection have not approved a levy for taxable years after 2015 of up to a specific number of mills under this section by December 31, 2015, the school district levy limitation for subsequent years is subject to the limitations under section 57-15-01.1 or this section.
 5. The authority for an unlimited levy approved by electors of a school district before July 1, 2009, is terminated effective for taxable years after 2015. If the electors of a school district subject to this subsection have not approved a levy of up to a specific number of mills under this section by December 31, 2015, the school district levy limitation for subsequent years is subject to the limitations under section 57-15-01.1 or this section.
 6. A school district that experiences a rapidly increasing taxable valuation may levy, for the taxable year of the rapidly increasing taxable valuation and the next taxable year, the amount in dollars which the school district levied for the prior school year plus eighteen percent, up to a general fund levy of one hundred eighty-five mills on the dollar of the taxable valuation of the district. For purposes of this subsection, "rapidly increasing taxable valuation" means an increase of twenty percent or more in taxable valuation from the immediately preceding taxable year.

The question of authorizing or discontinuing such specific number of mills authority in any school district must be submitted to the qualified electors at the next regular election upon resolution of the school board or upon the filing with the school board of a petition containing the signatures of qualified electors of the district equal in number to ten percent of the number of electors who cast votes in the most recent election in the school district. However, not fewer than twenty-five signatures are required. However, the approval of discontinuing such authority does not affect the tax levy in the calendar year in which the election is held. The election must be held in the same manner and subject to the same conditions as provided in this section for the first election upon the question of authorizing the mill levy.

SECTION 38. ISOLATED SCHOOLS - TRANSITION PAYMENTS.

1. If during the 2010-11 school year a school district received payments as a result of section 15.1-27-15, as the section existed on June 30, 2011, and if that district is not eligible for the factor established under subdivision j of subsection 1 of section 15.1-27-03.1, the district is entitled to the following transition payments:
 - a. For the 2011-12 school year, an amount equal to that which the district would have received under section 15.1-27-15, as the section existed on June 30, 2011;
 - b. For the 2012-13 school year, an amount equal to seventy-five percent of that which the district would have received under section 15.1-27-15, as the section existed on June 30, 2011;

- c. For the 2013-14 school year, an amount equal to fifty percent of that which the district would have received under section 15.1-27-15, as the section existed on June 30, 2011; and
 - d. For the 2014-15 school year, an amount equal to twenty-five percent of that which the district would have received under section 15.1-27-15, as the section existed on June 30, 2011.
2. Upon the closure of a school that met the definition of isolated under section 15.1-27-15, as it existed on June 30, 2011, the superintendent of public instruction shall cease to provide to the district the transition payments established under subsection 1.

SECTION 39. TRANSPORTATION GRANTS - DISTRIBUTION.

1. During each year of the 2011-13 biennium, the superintendent of public instruction shall calculate the payment to which each school district is entitled based on the state transportation formula as it existed on June 30, 2001, except that the superintendent shall provide reimbursement at the rate of:
 - a. One dollar and three cents per mile for schoolbuses having a capacity of ten or more passengers;
 - b. Forty-six cents per mile for vehicles having a capacity of nine or fewer passengers;
 - c. Forty-six cents per mile, provided:
 - (1) The student being transported is a student with a disability, as defined in chapter 15.1-32;
 - (2) The student's individualized education program plan requires that the student attend a public or a nonpublic school located outside the student's school district of residence;
 - (3) The student is transported by an adult member of the student's family;
 - (4) The student is transported in a vehicle furnished by the student's parents;
 - (5) The student's transportation is paid for by the student's parents; and
 - (6) The reimbursement does not exceed two round trips daily between the student's home and school.
 - d. Forty-six cents per mile, one way, provided:
 - (1) The student being transported resides more than two miles from the public school that the student attends;
 - (2) The student is transported by an adult member of the student's family;
 - (3) The student is transported in a vehicle furnished by the student's parents; and
 - (4) The student's transportation is paid for by the student's parents; and
 - e. Twenty-six cents per student for each one-way trip.

2. The superintendent of public instruction shall use the latest available student enrollment count in each school district in applying the provisions of subsection 1.
3. If any moneys provided for transportation payments in the grants transportation line item in the appropriation bill for the superintendent of public instruction, as approved by the sixty-second legislative assembly, remain after application of the formula provided for in this section, the superintendent of public instruction shall prorate the remaining amounts according to the percentage of the total transportation formula amount to which each school district is entitled.
4. This section does not authorize the reimbursement of any costs incurred in providing transportation for student attendance at extracurricular activities or events.

SECTION 40. SCHOOL DISTRICT RAPID ENROLLMENT GROWTH - GRANTS. During the 2011-13 biennium, the superintendent of public instruction shall expend up to \$5,000,000 from the grants - other grants line item in the appropriation bill for the superintendent of public instruction, as approved by the sixty-second legislative assembly, for the purpose of providing a grant to any school district that can demonstrate rapid enrollment growth in accordance with this section.

1. If the number of full-time equivalent students enrolled in a school district has increased by at least three percent annually and if that increase is equal to at least twenty-five full-time equivalent students, as demonstrated by the district's September tenth fall enrollment report, the district is entitled to receive a grant equal to thirty percent of the per student payment provided for in section 15.1-27-04 multiplied by the actual increase in its full-time equivalent student enrollment.
2. If the number of full-time equivalent students enrolled in a school district has increased by at least seven percent annually and if that increase is equal to at least twenty-five full-time equivalent students, as demonstrated by the district's September tenth fall enrollment report, the district is entitled to receive a grant equal to seventy percent of the per student payment provided for in section 15.1-27-04 multiplied by the actual increase in its full-time equivalent student enrollment.
3. If the number of full-time equivalent students enrolled in a school district has increased by at least thirteen percent annually and if that increase is equal to at least twenty-five full-time equivalent students, as demonstrated by the district's September tenth fall enrollment report, the district is entitled to receive a grant equal to the per student payment provided for in section 15.1-27-04 multiplied by the actual increase in its full-time equivalent student enrollment.
4. If the amount of the expenditure provided for in this section is insufficient to meet the obligations of this section, the superintendent of public instruction shall prorate the payment based on the percentage of the total amount to which each school district is entitled.
5. A district may not receive more than \$800,000 annually in accordance with this section.

SECTION 41. SUPPLEMENTAL TEACHER-EFFECTIVENESS COMPENSATION PLAN - GRANTS. During the 2011-13 biennium, the superintendent of public instruction shall expend up to \$700,000 from the grants - other grants line item in the appropriation bill for the superintendent of public instruction, as approved by the sixty-second legislative assembly for the purpose of providing a grant to any school district that submits an eligible supplemental teacher-effectiveness compensation plan in accordance with section 27 of this Act.

1. The amount of the grant to which a district is entitled must provide reimbursement for any costs the district incurred in developing the plan.

2. If providing the grants to each eligible district would exceed the expenditure authorized by this section, the superintendent of public instruction, with the advice of the review panel, shall select districts of varying size to receive the grants and shall prioritize the grants based on those plans that show the greatest potential to increase teacher-effectiveness through supplemental compensation. For purposes of this subsection, the superintendent of public instruction shall consider a district to be:
 - a. Small, if it has fewer than one thousand weighted student units;
 - b. Medium, if it has at least one thousand but fewer than five thousand weighted student units; and
 - c. Large, if it has at least five thousand weighted student units.

SECTION 42. ALTERNATIVE MIDDLE SCHOOL - GRANTS.

1. During the 2011-13 biennium, the superintendent of public instruction shall expend up to \$300,000 from the grants - other grants line item in the appropriation bill for the superintendent of public instruction, as approved by the sixty-second legislative assembly, for the purpose of providing a grant to any school district that offers an alternative education program for students enrolled in grades six through eight.
2. The superintendent of public instruction shall determine the amount to which a school district is entitled under this section based on the district's percentage of the statewide number of students in grades six through eight who are enrolled in an alternative education program for at least fifteen hours per week.
3. A district may not receive more than \$15,000 annually in accordance with this section.

SECTION 43. USE OF NEW MONEY - TEACHER COMPENSATION INCREASES - REPORTS TO THE LEGISLATIVE MANAGEMENT.

1. During the 2011-13 biennium, the board of each school district shall use an amount equal to at least seventy percent of all new money received by the district for per student payments to increase the compensation paid to teachers and to provide compensation to teachers who begin employment with the district on or after July 1, 2011.
2. For purposes of this section, the superintendent of public instruction shall calculate the amount of new money received by a district during the 2011-13 biennium by:
 - a. Determining the total amount of state dollars received by each district during the 2009-11 biennium as per student payments, provided that equity payments, transportation payments, contingency distributions, mill levy reduction payments, and technology support payments are not to be included in the total;
 - b. Determining the total amount of state dollars received by each district during the 2011-13 biennium as per student payments, provided that the following are not to be included in the total:
 - (1) Contingent distributions;
 - (2) Cross-border attendance moneys;
 - (3) Deferred maintenance and physical plant improvements grants;
 - (4) Equity payments;

- (5) Federal education jobs funds program moneys;
 - (6) Home-based education program monitoring moneys;
 - (7) Mill levy reduction payments;
 - (8) PowerSchool acquisition, implementation, and utilization moneys;
 - (9) Regional education association moneys and grants; and
 - (10) Transportation payments; and
- c. Subtracting the amount arrived at under subdivision a from the amount arrived at under subdivision b.
3. School districts providing educational services under a cooperative agreement approved by the superintendent of public instruction must, for purposes of this section, be treated as a single district.
 4.
 - a. This section does not apply to a school district if the board of the school district, after a public hearing at which public testimony and documentary evidence are accepted, determines in its discretion and by an affirmative vote of two-thirds of the members of the board that complying with subsection 1 would place the school district in the position of having insufficient fiscal resources to meet the school district's other obligations.
 - b. Within ten days of the vote required by subdivision a, the school board shall notify the superintendent of public instruction of its action and shall file a report detailing the grounds for its determination and action.
 - c. The superintendent of public instruction shall report all notices received under this subsection to the legislative management.

SECTION 44. CONTINGENT MONEY. If any money appropriated to the superintendent of public instruction for state aid payments to school districts remains after the superintendent complies with all statutory payment obligations imposed for the biennium beginning July 1, 2011, and ending June 30, 2013, the superintendent shall use the remaining moneys to provide additional per student payments on a prorated basis according to the latest available average daily membership of each school district.

SECTION 45. CONTINGENT TRANSFER BY BANK OF NORTH DAKOTA FOR SPECIAL EDUCATION. If during the biennium beginning July 1, 2011, and ending June 30, 2013, the superintendent of public instruction determines that, using all available sources, there are insufficient funds with which to fully reimburse school districts for the excess costs of serving the one percent of special education students statewide who require the greatest school district expenditures in order to be provided with special education and related services, the industrial commission shall transfer from the earnings and accumulated and undivided profits of the Bank of North Dakota the amount the superintendent of public instruction certifies is necessary to provide the statutorily required level of reimbursement. The superintendent of public instruction shall file for introduction legislation requesting that the sixty-third legislative assembly return any amount transferred under this section to the Bank of North Dakota.

SECTION 46. LEGISLATIVE MANAGEMENT STUDY - ADULT EDUCATION. During the 2011-12 interim, the legislative management shall consider studying the provision and funding of adult education. The legislative management shall report its findings and recommendations, together with any legislation required to implement the recommendations, to the sixty-third legislative assembly.

SECTION 47. EDUCATION FUNDING AND TAXATION COMMITTEE - STUDY.

1. The education funding and taxation committee consists of:
 - a. The following nine voting members:
 - (1) The chairman of the house education committee, or the chairman's designee;
 - (2) The chairman of the house finance and taxation committee, or the chairman's designee;
 - (3) The chairman of the senate education committee, or the chairman's designee;
 - (4) The chairman of the senate finance and taxation committee, or the chairman's designee; and
 - (5) Five legislators appointed by the chairman of the legislative management; and
 - b. The following five nonvoting members:
 - (1) The tax commissioner or the commissioner's designee;
 - (2) The superintendent of public instruction or the superintendent's designee;
 - (3) A representative of the governor, selected by the governor; and
 - (4) Two school district business managers, appointed by the legislative management.
2. The chairman of the legislative management shall select one from among the voting members to serve as the chairman of the committee.
3. The committee shall operate according to the statutes and procedure governing the operation of other legislative management interim committees.
4. The committee shall examine short-term and longer-term state and local involvement in funding elementary and secondary education. The committee shall report its findings and recommendations, together with any legislation required to implement the recommendations, to the legislative management.

SECTION 48. REPEAL. Section 6 of this Act and sections 15.1-18.2-01, 15.1-18.2-02, and 15.1-18.2-03 of the North Dakota Century Code are repealed.

SECTION 49. REPEAL. Section 15.1-27-15 of the North Dakota Century Code is repealed.

SECTION 50. EFFECTIVE DATE. Section 48 of this Act becomes effective on July 1, 2013."

Re-number accordingly

MESSAGE TO THE SENATE FROM THE HOUSE (BUELL J. REICH, CHIEF CLERK)
MR. PRESIDENT: The House has amended, subsequently passed, and the emergency clause carried: SB 2013.

HOUSE AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED SENATE BILL NO. 2013

Page 1, line 4, replace "alternative education program" with "continuing education"

Page 1, line 4, after "programs" insert "and medicaid matching funds,"

Page 1, line 4, remove "to"

Page 1, line 5, remove "provide a contingent appropriation;"

Page 1, line 10, after the semicolon insert "to amend and reenact section 16 of chapter 13 of the 2009 Session Laws, relating to contingent supplemental transportation aid payments; to provide a statement of legislative intent; to provide for reports to the budget section and sixty-third legislative assembly;"

Page 1, replace line 24 with:

"Operating expenses	30,770,801	(1,087,614)	29,683,187"
---------------------	------------	-------------	-------------

Page 2, replace line 1 with:

"Grants - State school aid	722,725,958	190,033,520	912,759,478"
----------------------------	-------------	-------------	--------------

Page 2, replace lines 6 and 7 with:

"Grants - Other grants	245,203,721	64,180,672	309,384,393
------------------------	-------------	------------	-------------

Grants - Mill levy reduction	295,000,000	(295,000,000)	0
------------------------------	-------------	---------------	---

ATCS review panel	0	300,000	300,000"
-------------------	---	---------	----------

Page 2, replace lines 11 through 13 with:

"Total all funds	\$1,468,777,356	(\$116,008,282)	\$1,352,769,074
------------------	-----------------	-----------------	-----------------

Less estimated income	<u>360,597,766</u>	<u>90,605,657</u>	<u>451,203,423</u>
-----------------------	--------------------	-------------------	--------------------

Total general fund	\$1,108,179,590	(\$206,613,939)	\$901,565,651"
--------------------	-----------------	-----------------	----------------

Page 3, replace lines 22 through 24 with:

"Grand total general fund	\$1,122,401,382	(\$205,055,744)	\$917,345,638
---------------------------	-----------------	-----------------	---------------

Grand total special funds	\$364,672,954	\$101,588,177	\$466,261,131
---------------------------	---------------	---------------	---------------

Grand total all funds	\$1,487,074,336	(\$103,467,567)	\$1,383,606,769"
-----------------------	-----------------	-----------------	------------------

Page 4, remove line 21

Page 4, replace line 24 with:

"Total school for the blind - All funds	\$70,200	\$70,000"
---	----------	-----------

Page 4, replace lines 26 and 27 with:

"Total school for the blind - General fund	\$70,200	\$70,000
--	----------	----------

Grand total - All funds	\$156,055,588	\$557,800"
-------------------------	---------------	------------

Page 4, replace line 29 with:

"Grand total - General fund	\$2,197,200	\$557,800"
-----------------------------	-------------	------------

Page 5, after line 3, insert:

"SECTION 3. APPROPRIATION - LANDS AND MINERALS TRUST FUND - STATE BOARD OF HIGHER EDUCATION. There is appropriated out of any moneys in the lands and minerals trust fund in the state treasury, not otherwise appropriated, the sum of \$10,000,000, or so much of the sum as may be necessary, to the state

board of higher education for the purpose of providing North Dakota academic and career and technical education scholarships, for the biennium beginning July 1, 2011, and ending June 30, 2013."

Page 5, remove lines 13 through 18

Page 6, after line 7, insert:

"SECTION 8. RESERVED FUNDS - CONTINGENT ADULT EDUCATION LEARNING CENTER GRANTS. The sum of \$500,000, or so much of the sum as may be necessary, made available under section 18 of this Act, must be used by the department of public instruction for providing adult education learning center grants, for the biennium beginning July 1, 2011, and ending June 30, 2013. The department may provide grants of up to \$250,000 during the first year of the biennium only if federal funding available to the state for adult education is less than \$900,000 in federal fiscal year 2012. Funding provided in the first year of the biennium is limited to the difference between federal funding available in federal fiscal year 2012 and \$900,000. The department may use any remaining funds for adult education learning center grants during the second year of the biennium.

SECTION 9. CONTINUING EDUCATION GRANTS - FUNDING - DISTRIBUTION. The sum of \$100,000, or so much of the sum as may be necessary, included in the grants - other grants line item in subdivision 1 of section 1 of this Act is provided for continuing education grants, for the biennium beginning July 1, 2011, and ending June 30, 2013.

1. The superintendent of public instruction shall award grants in amounts up to \$1,200 to eligible recipients in chronological order, based on the date of an individual's application. An eligible recipient must:
 - a. (1) Be licensed to teach by the education standards and practices board;
 - (2) Have taught in this state during each of the last three school years; and
 - (3) Be enrolled at an institution of higher education in this state in either a master of education program in educational leadership or a program leading to a specialist diploma in educational leadership;
 - b. Be pursuing the requirements for a certificate in career development facilitation; or
 - c. Be pursuing a school counselor credential.
2. If any of the amount appropriated for this purpose remains after the superintendent of public instruction has awarded grants to all eligible recipients, the superintendent shall distribute that amount as an additional per student payment on a prorated basis, according to the latest available average daily membership of each school district."

Page 6, remove lines 8 through 16

Page 6, line 17, after the first boldfaced dash insert "**MEDICAID MATCHING -**"

Page 6, line 17, after the second boldfaced period insert:

"1."

Page 6, line 23, after the period insert:

"2."

Page 6, remove lines 29 through 31

Page 7, remove lines 1 through 5

Page 8, remove lines 13 through 31

Page 9, replace lines 1 through 18 with:

"SECTION 16. AMENDMENT. Section 16 of chapter 13 of the 2009 Session Laws is amended and reenacted as follows:

SECTION 16. CONTINGENT APPROPRIATION - SUPPLEMENTAL TRANSPORTATION AID PAYMENTS.

1. There is appropriated out of any moneys in the general fund in the state treasury, not otherwise appropriated, the sum of ~~\$5,000,000~~\$2,500,000, or so much of the sum as may be necessary, to the superintendent of public instruction for the purpose of providing supplemental transportation aid payments, for the biennium beginning July 1, 2009, and ending June 30, 2011.
2. If the office of management and budget determines by July 31, 2010, that the June 30, 2011, ending balance of the state general fund will be more than \$30,000,000 in excess of the amount predicted by the office of management and budget at the conclusion of the 2009 legislative session, the superintendent of public instruction shall provide ~~\$5,000,000~~\$2,500,000 as supplemental transportation aid payments to school districts.
3. If the general fund balance requirements of subsection 2 are not met and if the office of management and budget determines by April 30, 2011, that the June 30, 2011, ending balance of the state general fund will be more than \$30,000,000 in excess of the amount predicted by the office of management and budget at the conclusion of the 2009 legislative session, the superintendent of public instruction shall provide ~~\$5,000,000~~\$2,500,000 as supplemental transportation aid payments to school districts.
4. The superintendent of public instruction shall pro rate the supplemental transportation payments according to the percentage of the total transportation formula amount that each school district is entitled to receive under 2009 House Bill No. 1400 as approved by the sixty-first legislative assembly."

Page 11, line 6, after "b." insert "Reserve the next five hundred thousand dollars, which is not subject to the provisions of section 54-44.1-11 and must be used in accordance with section 8 of this Act.

c."

Page 11, line 13, replace "54-44.1-1-11" with "54-44.1-11"

Page 11, after line 13, insert:

"SECTION 20. LEGISLATIVE INTENT - 2013-15 SCHOOL FOR THE DEAF APPROPRIATION BILL. It is the intent of the sixty-second legislative assembly that the governor include the recommended funding for the school for the deaf in a separate draft appropriations act for introduction to the sixty-third legislative assembly.

SECTION 21. REPORT TO THE BUDGET SECTION AND THE SIXTY-THIRD LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY. The superintendent of public instruction shall provide a report to the budget section by September 30, 2012, and to the sixty-third legislative assembly on the development of alternative teacher compensation plans. The report must include use of the funding, number of plans developed, summary of plan variances, criteria for teacher performance review, and recommendations."

Page 11, line 21, replace "3, 17, and 18" with "4, 16, 17, and 18"

Renumber accordingly

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE OF AMENDMENT:

Senate Bill No. 2013 - Summary of House Action

	Executive Budget	Senate Version	House Changes	House Version
Department of Public Instruction				
Total all funds	\$1,694,573,163	\$1,694,606,663	(\$341,837,589)	\$1,352,769,074
Less estimated income	792,508,423	792,993,423	(341,790,000)	451,203,423
General fund	\$902,064,740	\$901,613,240	(\$47,589)	\$901,565,651
University System Office				
Total all funds	\$0	\$0	\$10,000,000	\$10,000,000
Less estimated income	0	0	10,000,000	10,000,000
General fund	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0
State Library				
Total all funds	\$7,398,585	\$7,398,585	\$0	\$7,398,585
Less estimated income	2,134,610	2,134,610	0	2,134,610
General fund	\$5,263,975	\$5,263,975	\$0	\$5,263,975
School for the Deaf				
Total all funds	\$8,806,779	\$8,806,779	\$0	\$8,806,779
Less estimated income	2,088,007	2,088,007	0	2,088,007
General fund	\$6,718,772	\$6,718,772	\$0	\$6,718,772
Vision Services - School for the Blind				
Total all funds	\$4,915,331	\$4,632,331	\$0	\$4,632,331
Less estimated income	835,091	835,091	0	835,091
General fund	\$4,080,240	\$3,797,240	\$0	\$3,797,240
Bill total				
Total all funds	\$1,715,693,858	\$1,715,444,358	(\$331,837,589)	\$1,383,606,769
Less estimated income	797,566,131	798,051,131	(331,790,000)	466,261,131
General fund	\$918,127,727	\$917,393,227	(\$47,589)	\$917,345,638

Senate Bill No. 2013 - Department of Public Instruction - House Action

	Executive Budget	Senate Version	House Changes	House Version
Salaries and wages	\$14,409,300	\$14,409,300		\$14,409,300
Operating expenses	29,651,187	29,751,187	(68,000)	29,683,187
Grants - State school aid	919,459,478	919,459,478	(6,700,000)	912,759,478
Grants - Special education contracts	16,000,000	16,000,000		16,000,000
Grants - Transportation	48,500,000	48,500,000		48,500,000
Grants - Other education	302,730,482	302,963,982	6,420,411	309,384,393
Grants - Mill levy reduction	341,790,000	341,790,000	(341,790,000)	
ATCS review panel	300,000		300,000	300,000
Education jobs fund	21,517,716	21,517,716		21,517,716
Transportation efficiency	30,000	30,000		30,000
National board certification	185,000	185,000		185,000
Total all funds	\$1,694,573,163	\$1,694,606,663	(\$341,837,589)	\$1,352,769,074
Less estimated income	792,508,423	792,993,423	(341,790,000)	451,203,423
General fund	\$902,064,740	\$901,613,240	(\$47,589)	\$901,565,651
FTE	99.75	99.75	0.00	99.75

Department No. 201 - Department of Public Instruction - Detail of House Changes

	Increases Funding for Grants ¹	Increases Funding for Adult Education Grants ²	Adjusts State School Aid ³	Removes Funding for Alternative Education Program Grants ⁴	Restores Funding for the Alternative Teacher Compensation System Review Panel ⁵	Adds Funding for Alternative Teacher Compensation Plan Development Grants ⁶
Salaries and wages						
Operating expenses						
Grants - State school aid			(6,700,000)			
Grants - Special education						

contracts						
Grants - Transportation	120,000	1,060,411		(460,000)		700,000
Grants - Other education						
Grants - Mill levy reduction						
ATCS review panel					300,000	
Education jobs fund						
Transportation efficiency						
National board certification						
Total all funds	\$120,000	\$1,060,411	(\$6,700,000)	(\$460,000)	\$300,000	\$700,000
Less estimated income	0	0	0	0	0	0
General fund	\$120,000	\$1,060,411	(\$6,700,000)	(\$460,000)	\$300,000	\$700,000
FTE	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00

	Adds Funding for Rapid Enrollment Grants ⁷	Decreases Funding for the Professional Development Advisory Committee ⁸	Removes Funding for Mill Levy Reduction Grants ⁹	Total House Changes
Salaries and wages				
Operating expenses		(68,000)		(68,000)
Grants - State school aid				(6,700,000)
Grants - Special education contracts				
Grants - Transportation				
Grants - Other education	5,000,000			6,420,411
Grants - Mill levy reduction			(341,790,000)	(341,790,000)
ATCS review panel				300,000
Education jobs fund				
Transportation efficiency				
National board certification				
Total all funds	\$5,000,000	(\$68,000)	(\$341,790,000)	(\$341,837,589)
Less estimated income	0	0	(341,790,000)	(341,790,000)
General fund	\$5,000,000	(\$68,000)	\$0	(\$47,589)
FTE	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00

¹ Funding for general fund grants is increased as follows:

	Increase	Total
Provided		
Atlantic Brucke/Atlantic Forum	\$30,000	\$105,000
North Central Council for School Television	40,000	485,000
Governor's School	<u>50,000</u>	<u>460,000</u>
Total	\$120,000	\$1,050,000

² Funding for adult education learning center grants is increased to provide a total of \$3,110,411 from the general fund. In addition, Section 59 of Chapter 175 of the 2009 Session Laws is amended to provide that, after reserving the first \$8 million of 2009-11 biennium unobligated state school aid for per student payments during the 2011-13 biennium, the next \$500,000 is reserved for adult education learning center grants. The \$500,000 is available to the department for additional adult education learning center grants if federal funding for adult education received by the department is less than \$900,000 in any year of the 2011-13 biennium. The department may only spend up to \$250,000 of these funds during the first year of the biennium.

³ State school aid and per student payment rates are adjusted for the following:

- (\$7,500,000) - Removal of funding used by the Senate to increase per student payment rates. The Senate removed the supplemental teacher-effectiveness compensation program factor included in the executive recommendation and used the funding to increase per student payment rates.
- (\$3,600,000) - Decrease due to delaying implementation of the requirement that school districts increase their school calendars by 1 day, from 181 days to 182 days, until the 2012-13 school year.

- \$2,500,000 - Increase relating to the use of funding made available from a reduction in the 2009-11 biennium contingent supplemental transportation aid payments provided by the 2009 Legislative Assembly from \$5 million to \$2.5 million.
- \$1,900,000 - Increase per student payment rates.
- (\$6,700,000) - Total reduction in state school aid.

⁴ Funding for alternative education program grants added by the Senate is removed. The executive recommendation did not include the alternative education program grants.

⁵ Funding for the Alternative Teacher Compensation System Review Panel and contracted program adviser, included in the executive recommendation and removed by the Senate, is restored.

⁶ Funding is added to provide grants to school districts that wish to develop alternative teacher compensation plans. Funding for these grants was not included in the executive recommendation.

⁷ Funding is provided for grants to school districts that are experiencing rapid enrollment increases. This funding was not included in the executive recommendation.

⁸ Funding is reduced to reflect a limit on the number of meetings of the Professional Development Advisory Committee in Senate Bill No. 2150.

⁹ Funding for mill levy reduction grants from the property tax sustainability fund included in the executive recommendation is removed. Funding is provided from the general fund in House Bill No. 1047.

In addition, this amendment:

- Removes Section 8 relating to alternative education program grants, Section 10 relating to the Teacher of the Year program, Section 16 relating to a contingent appropriation for school district deferred maintenance and physical plant improvement grants, and Section 5 relating to mill levy reduction grants.
- Amends Section 9 relating to the gifted and talented program and Medicaid matching funds to more clearly distinguish distribution and Section 18 relating to an amendment to Section 59 of Chapter 175 of the 2009 Session Laws to reserve \$500,000 of unobligated 2009-11 state school aid for 2011-13 adult education learning center grants.
- Adds sections relating to the distribution of continuing education grants, a separate budget bill for the North Dakota School for the Deaf for the 2013 legislative session rather than in the appropriation bill for the Department of Public Instruction, an amendment to Section 16 of Chapter 13 of the 2009 Session Laws regarding contingent supplemental transportation aid payments which will result in an additional \$2.5 million of funding available in the general fund for the 2011-13 biennium, the distribution of unobligated 2009-11 state school aid reserved for adult education learning center grants, and a report to the Budget Section and the Legislative Assembly on the development of alternative teacher compensation plans.

Senate Bill No. 2013 - University System Office - House Action

	Executive Budget	Senate Version	House Changes	House Version
North Dakota Scholarship Program			\$10,000,000	\$10,000,000
Total all funds	\$0	\$0	\$10,000,000	\$10,000,000
Less estimated income	0	0	10,000,000	10,000,000
General fund	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0
FTE	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00

Department No. 215 - University System Office - Detail of House Changes

	Provides Funding for the North Dakota Scholarship Program ¹	Total House Changes
North Dakota Scholarship Program	\$10,000,000	\$10,000,000
Total all funds	\$10,000,000	\$10,000,000
Less estimated income	10,000,000	10,000,000
General fund	\$0	\$0
FTE	0.00	0.00

¹ This amendment adds a section providing \$10 million for North Dakota academic and career and technical education scholarships from the lands and minerals trust fund. The Governor recommended a continuing appropriation from the lands and minerals trust fund to provide for these scholarships.

MESSAGE TO THE HOUSE FROM THE SENATE (WILLIAM R. HORTON, SECRETARY)

MR. SPEAKER: The Senate does not concur in the House amendments to SB 2013 and SB 2150, and the President has appointed as a conference committee to act with a like committee from the House on:

SB 2013: Sens. Holmberg; Wardner; Robinson

SB 2150: Sens. Freborg; Flakoll; Heckaman

MESSAGE TO THE SENATE FROM THE HOUSE (BUELL J. REICH, CHIEF CLERK)

MR. PRESIDENT: The House has appointed as a conference committee to act with a like committee from the Senate on:

SB 2003: Reps. Dahl; Klein; Glassheim

SB 2008: Reps. Brandenburg; Klein; Kroeber

SB 2016: Reps. Klein; Brandenburg; Kroeber

MESSAGE TO THE SENATE FROM THE HOUSE (BUELL J. REICH, CHIEF CLERK)

MR. PRESIDENT: The House has appointed as a conference committee to act with a like committee from the Senate on:

SB 2020: Reps. Skarphol; Monson; Williams

SB 2227: Reps. DeKrey; Brandenburg; Hanson

MESSAGE TO THE SENATE FROM THE HOUSE (BUELL J. REICH, CHIEF CLERK)

MR. PRESIDENT: The House does not concur in the Senate amendments to HB 1001, and the Speaker has appointed as a conference committee to act with a like committee from the Senate on:

HB 1001: Reps. Thoreson; Klein; Kroeber

MESSAGE TO THE SENATE FROM THE HOUSE (BUELL J. REICH, CHIEF CLERK)

MR. PRESIDENT: The House does not concur in the Senate amendments to HB 1003, HB 1020, HB 1033, HB 1044, and HB 1289, and the Speaker has appointed as a conference committee to act with a like committee from the Senate on:

HB 1003: Reps. Skarphol; Martinson; Williams

HB 1020: Reps. Skarphol; Hawken; Williams

HB 1033: Reps. Dosch; Monson; Williams

HB 1044: Reps. Weisz; Pollert; Holman
HB 1289: Reps. Belter; Headland; S. Kelsh

MESSAGE TO THE HOUSE FROM THE SENATE (WILLIAM R. HORTON, SECRETARY)
MR. SPEAKER: The Senate has appointed as a conference committee to act with a like committee from the House on:

HB 1003: Sens. Holmberg; Krebsbach; O'Connell
HB 1020: Sens. Bowman; Holmberg; O'Connell
HB 1033: Sens. Holmberg; Krebsbach; Grindberg
HB 1044: Sens. J. Lee; Uglem; Bowman

MESSAGE TO THE SENATE FROM THE HOUSE (BUELL J. REICH, CHIEF CLERK)
MR. PRESIDENT: The Speaker has appointed Rep. Holman to replace Rep. Conklin on the Conference Committee on SB 2268.

MESSAGE TO THE SENATE FROM THE HOUSE (BUELL J. REICH, CHIEF CLERK)
MR. PRESIDENT: The Speaker has appointed Rep. Kilichowski to replace Rep. Conklin on the Conference Committee on HB 1199.

MESSAGE TO THE HOUSE FROM THE SENATE (WILLIAM R. HORTON, SECRETARY)
MR. SPEAKER: The Senate has adopted the conference committee report on: SB 2169.

MESSAGE TO THE HOUSE FROM THE SENATE (WILLIAM R. HORTON, SECRETARY)
MR. SPEAKER: The Senate has adopted the conference committee report on: SB 2169.

MESSAGE TO THE HOUSE FROM THE SENATE (WILLIAM R. HORTON, SECRETARY)
MR. SPEAKER: The Senate has adopted the conference committee report on: HB 1433.

MESSAGE TO THE HOUSE FROM THE SENATE (WILLIAM R. HORTON, SECRETARY)
MR. SPEAKER: The Senate has adopted the conference committee report and subsequently passed: SB 2098, SB 2231, SB 2247, SCR 4002.

MESSAGE TO THE HOUSE FROM THE SENATE (WILLIAM R. HORTON, SECRETARY)
MR. SPEAKER: The Senate has adopted the conference committee report and subsequently passed: HB 1270.

MESSAGE TO THE HOUSE FROM THE SENATE (WILLIAM R. HORTON, SECRETARY)
MR. SPEAKER: The Senate has adopted the conference committee report, subsequently passed, and the emergency clause carried: SB 2253, SB 2308.

MESSAGE TO THE HOUSE FROM THE SENATE (WILLIAM R. HORTON, SECRETARY)
MR. SPEAKER: The Senate has adopted the conference committee report, subsequently passed, and the emergency clause carried: HB 1029.

MESSAGE TO THE SENATE FROM THE HOUSE (BUELL J. REICH, CHIEF CLERK)
MR. PRESIDENT: The House has adopted the conference committee report on: SB 2065.

MESSAGE TO THE SENATE FROM THE HOUSE (BUELL J. REICH, CHIEF CLERK)
MR. PRESIDENT: The House has adopted the conference committee report and subsequently passed: HB 1085, HB 1091, HB 1142, HB 1204.

MESSAGE TO THE SENATE FROM THE HOUSE (BUELL J. REICH, CHIEF CLERK)
MR. PRESIDENT: Your signature is respectfully requested on: HB 1012, HB 1092, HB 1397, HB 1421, HB 1425, HB 1426, HB 1469.

MESSAGE TO THE SENATE FROM THE HOUSE (BUELL J. REICH, CHIEF CLERK)
MR. PRESIDENT: Your signature is respectfully requested on: HB 1214, HCR 3009, HCR 3048.

MESSAGE TO THE HOUSE FROM THE SENATE (WILLIAM R. HORTON, SECRETARY)
MR. SPEAKER: The President has signed: HB 1012, HB 1092, HB 1397, HB 1421, HB 1425, HB 1426, HB 1469.

MESSAGE TO THE SENATE FROM THE HOUSE (BUELL J. REICH, CHIEF CLERK)
MR. PRESIDENT: The Speaker has signed: HB 1438.

MESSAGE TO THE SENATE FROM THE HOUSE (BUELL J. REICH, CHIEF CLERK)
MR. PRESIDENT: The Speaker has signed: HB 1469.

MOTION

SEN. CHRISTMANN MOVED that the Senate be on the Fourth, Fifth, Seventh, and Thirteenth orders of business and at the conclusion of those orders, the Senate stand adjourned until 8:00 a.m., Thursday, April 14, 2011, which motion prevailed.

REPORT OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE

SB 2311, as reengrossed: Your conference committee (Sens. G. Lee, Freborg, Marcellais and Reps. D. Johnson, L. Meier, Hunskor) recommends that the **HOUSE RECEDE** from the House amendments as printed on SJ pages 1054-1055, adopt amendments as follows, and place SB 2311 on the Seventh order:

That the House recede from its amendments as printed on pages 1054 and 1055 of the Senate Journal and pages 1186 and 1187 of the House Journal and that Reengrossed Senate Bill No. 2311 be amended as follows:

Page 1, remove line 19

Page 1, line 20, replace "g." with "f."

Page 1, line 21, replace "h." with "g."

Page 1, replace lines 22 through 24 with:

"3. By September thirtieth of each year, the governor and the superintendent of public instruction shall jointly announce the award recipient and serve as the exclusive hosts of a ceremony and reception honoring the teacher of the year. The ceremony and reception must take place in the memorial hall of the state capitol or, if requested by the award recipient, at a location in the municipality within which the recipient resides or works."

Renumber accordingly

Reengrossed SB 2311 was placed on the Seventh order of business on the calendar.

REPORT OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE

SB 2187, as engrossed: Your conference committee (Sens. Dever, Sorvaag, Nelson and Reps. Nathe, Vigesaa, Gruchalla) recommends that the **HOUSE RECEDE** from the House amendments as printed on SJ page 1052, adopt amendments as follows, and place SB 2187 on the Seventh order:

That the Senate accede to the House amendments as printed on page 1052 of the Senate Journal and pages 1184 and 1185 of the House Journal and that Engrossed Senate Bill No. 2187 be further amended as follows:

Page 1, line 3, remove the third "and"

Page 1, line 3, after "application" insert "; and to declare an emergency"

Page 4, after line 11, insert:

"SECTION 5. EMERGENCY. This Act is declared to be an emergency measure."

Renumber accordingly

Engrossed SB 2187 was placed on the Seventh order of business on the calendar.

REPORT OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE

SB 2295: Your conference committee (Sens. Olafson, Nething, Nelson and Reps. Klemin,

Kretschmar, Guggisberg) recommends that the **HOUSE RECEDE** from the House amendments as printed on SJ pages 1025-1026, adopt amendments as follows, and place SB 2295 on the Seventh order:

That the House recede from its amendments as printed on pages 1025 and 1026 of the Senate Journal and pages 1115 and 1116 of the House Journal and that Senate Bill No. 2295 be amended as follows:

Page 1, line 1, replace the first "section" with "sections 53-08-01 and"

Page 1, after line 3, insert:

"SECTION 1. AMENDMENT. Section 53-08-01 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

53-08-01. Definitions.

In this chapter, unless the context or subject matter otherwise requires:

1. "Charge" means the amount of money asked in return for an invitation to enter or go upon the land. "Charge" does not include vehicle, parking, shelter, or other similar fees required by any public entity.
2. "Commercial purpose" means a deliberative decision of an owner to invite or permit the use of the owner's property for normal business transactions, including the buying and selling of goods and services. The term includes any decision of an owner to invite members of the public onto the premises for recreational purposes as a means of encouraging business transactions or directly improving the owner's commercial activities other than through good will. "Commercial purpose" does not include the operation of public lands by a public entity except any direct activity for which there is a charge for goods or services.
3. "Land" includes all public and private land, roads, water, watercourses, and ways and buildings, structures, and machinery or equipment thereon.
- ~~3.4.~~ "Owner" includes tenant, lessee, occupant, or person in control of the premises.
- ~~4.5.~~ "Recreational purposes" includes any activity engaged in for the purpose of exercise, relaxation, pleasure, or education."

Page 1, line 6, overstrike "**landowner**" and insert immediately thereafter "**owner**"

Page 1, after line 6, insert:

"1."

Page 1, line 8, replace "irrespective" with "regardless"

Page 1, line 10, replace "related to" with "is directly derived from"

Page 1, line 10, replace "parties" with "persons"

Page 1, after line 12, insert:

- "2. This section does not apply to:
 - a. A person that enters land to provide goods or services at the request of, and at the direction or under the control of, an owner; or
 - b. An owner engaged in a for-profit business venture that directly or indirectly invites members of the public onto the premises for

commercial purposes or during normal periods of commercial activity in which members of the public are invited."

Page 1, line 16, replace "arises out of" with "is directly derived from"

Page 1, line 16, after "those" insert "recreational"

Page 1, line 17, after "owed" insert "other than a person that enters land to provide goods or services at the request of, and at the direction or under the control of, the owner"

Renumber accordingly

SB 2295 was placed on the Seventh order of business on the calendar.

REPORT OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE

HB 1204, as engrossed: Your conference committee (Sens. Nething, Sitte, Sorvaag and Reps. Koppelman, Brabandt, Delmore) recommends that the **HOUSE ACCEDE** to the Senate amendments as printed on HJ page 981, adopt further amendments as follows, and place HB 1204 on the Seventh order:

That the Senate recede from its amendments as printed on page 981 of the House Journal and pages 698 and 699 of the Senate Journal and that Engrossed House Bill No. 1204 be amended as follows:

Page 1, line 8, remove the overstrike over "øf"

Page 1, remove line 9

Page 1, line 10, remove "court, or a"

Page 1, line 10, overstrike "in another state" and insert immediately thereafter "from another court in North Dakota, a court of record in the United States, or a tribal court"

Renumber accordingly

Engrossed HB 1204 was placed on the Seventh order of business on the calendar.

REPORT OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE

HB 1142, as engrossed: Your conference committee (Sens. Olafson, Nething, Sorvaag and Reps. Kretschmar, DeKrey, Onstad) recommends that the **HOUSE ACCEDE** to the Senate amendments as printed on HJ pages 1103-1104 and place HB 1142 on the Seventh order.

Engrossed HB 1142 was placed on the Seventh order of business on the calendar.

REPORT OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE

HB 1091, as engrossed: Your conference committee (Sens. Andrist, Laffen, Schneider and Reps. Koppelman, Beadle, Guggisberg) recommends that the **SENATE RECEDE** from the Senate amendments as printed on HJ pages 980-981, adopt amendments as follows, and place HB 1091 on the Seventh order:

That the Senate recede from its amendments as printed on pages 980 and 981 of the House Journal and page 697 of the Senate Journal and that Engrossed House Bill No. 1091 be amended as follows:

Page 1, line 6, overstrike "into"

Page 1, line 7, overstrike "it" and insert immediately thereafter "the investment advisory contract"

Page 1, line 8, overstrike "shall" and insert immediately thereafter "may"

Page 1, line 10, after "This" insert "subdivision"

Page 1, line 12, after the period insert "This subdivision does not prohibit an investment advisory contract that provides for performance fees permitted and determined in accordance with section 205 of the Investment Advisers Act of 1940 [Pub. L. 768: 54 Stat. 852; 15 U.S.C. 80b-5] and the rules adopted thereunder."

Page 2, remove lines 1 and 2

Renumber accordingly

Engrossed HB 1091 was placed on the Seventh order of business on the calendar.

REPORT OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE

HB 1085, as engrossed: Your conference committee (Sens. Dever, Uglen, Berry and Reps. Porter, Louser, Conklin) recommends that the **SENATE RECEDE** from the Senate amendments as printed on HJ page 980, adopt amendments as follows, and place HB 1085 on the Seventh order:

That the Senate recede from its amendments as printed on page 980 of the House Journal and pages 696 and 697 of the Senate Journal and that Engrossed House Bill No. 1085 be amended as follows:

Page 1, line 2, replace "suspension of" with "conditions on an early childhood"

Page 1, line 8, remove the overstrike over "~~of license, self-declaration, or registration document~~" and insert immediately thereafter "- Investigation upon a report of child abuse or neglect"

Page 1, line 10, after "suspend" insert ":

a. Suspend"

Page 1, line 10, remove the overstrike over "~~a license, self-declaration, or registration document~~"

Page 1, line 11, replace "prohibit" with "at any time after the onset of a child abuse and neglect investigation alleging the owner or operator, the holder of a self-declaration, or the in-home provider has committed child abuse, including child sexual abuse, or has neglected a child and law enforcement has been involved, if continued operation is likely to jeopardize the health and safety of the children.

b. Suspend upon a child abuse or neglect services required determination indicating that a child has been abused or neglected by the owner or operator, the holder of a self-declaration, or the in-home provider if continued operation is likely to jeopardize the health and safety of the children present.

c. Prohibit"

Page 1, line 11, after "an" insert "accused"

Page 1, line 16, after "member" insert "or household member"

Page 1, line 16, replace "would" with "or the presence of the accused individual is likely to"

Page 1, line 18, overstrike "shall" and insert immediately thereafter ":

a. Shall"

Page 1, after line 20, insert:

"b. May notify the parent of any child receiving early childhood services when an owner, operator, holder of a self-declaration, in-home provider, adult staff member, or adult household member of the program providing care of the child is under investigation under subsection 1.

- c. May notify the parent of any child receiving early childhood services that a staff member or household member is under investigation under subsection 1 if the staff member or household member is a minor."

Page 1, line 21, overstrike "of the program"

Page 2, line 1, replace "a suspension" with "any action taken"

Renumber accordingly

Engrossed HB 1085 was placed on the Seventh order of business on the calendar.

The Senate stood adjourned pursuant to Senator Christmann's motion.

William R. Horton, Secretary

